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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Ningbo WanHao
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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Qhairman’s Statement
FERE

| would like to take this opportunity to report last year’s operating
condition of the Company to our shareholders on behalf of the Board of
Directors.

In 2012, the Group completed the changes in major shareholders. After
the convention of its general meeting on 9 October 2012, the Company

changed its name to % % & S ZE KR IR 4 & R 2 & (Ningbo WanHao
Holdings Company Limited).

In the year 2012, the Group continued to focus on manufacturing the
special mobile phones designed for elderly care purposes (“HT-120” and
“HT-999”), which belong to a telecommunication market segment, under
its self-owned brands and our OEM business for electronic control
products. Meanwhile, we developed and manufactured mobile phones
tailored for children, namely the “HT-D9”, and tapped domestic markets
of Zhejiang, Shandong, Beijing, Heilongjiang and Guizhou through
cooperation with China Telecom and China Unicom, which will certainly
energise and vitalise the Company.

Finally, I give my sincerest thanks to my fellow directors and our
colleagues for their unwavering dedications and significant contributions
rendered to the Group. | am confident that their endeavors will continue
to contribute to the satisfactory results of the Group in the year ahead.
On behalf of the Board, | would also like to take this opportunity to extend
our heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers, bankers and
business associates for their continuous support to the Group.

Zhu Guo An
Chairman
Ningbo, PRC
22 March 2013
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis

BB AR AT

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB9,180,000 (2011: RMB8,689,000), representing an
increase of approximately 5.7% over the previous year. The increase in
the Group’s revenue is due to our marketing efforts during the year.

The Group’s activities are divided into 2 reportable segments — namely (i)
sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and electronic
appliances and income from sales of small electrical appliances, and (i)
sales of controller systems for mobile phones and income from sales and
assembly of mobile phones. Accordingly, analysis by reportable
segments is provided in note 11.

The Group’s activities are primarily operated in the PRC. All of the
Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in the PRC as explained in
note 11.

Gross profit margin is -61.5% (2011: -129.3%). Revenue increases
slightly by RMB491,000. The decrease in cost of sales by RMB5,104,000
is mainly due to the decrease in impairment of inventories by
RMB5,614,000 (2012: RMBNil; 2011: RMB5,614,000). The Group will
continue to procure cost control to mitigate the impact of price
competition caused by intense competition in the mobile phone industry.

Other revenues recorded a decrease by RMB5,265,000 are mainly due
to the decrease in the sales of scrap materials (2012: RMB830,000;
2011: RMB2,172,000) and the decrease in waiver of amounts due to
directors (2012: RMB416,000; 2011: RMB4,133,000). Selling and
distribution expenses recorded a decrease by RMB353,000 as a result of
tighter cost control, while administrative expenses recorded a decrease
by RMB11,982,000 over the previous year. The decrease in
administrative expenses are mainly due to the decrease in the impairment
loss recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment by
RMB502,000 (2012: RMB1,255,000; 2011: RMB1,757,000); the
decrease in the impairment loss recognised in respect of other
receivables by RMB8,255,000 (2012: RMBNiIl; 2011: RMB8,255,000).
For the year ended 31 December 2012, finance costs amounted to
approximately RMB1,365,000 (2011: RMB1,802,000), which represented
a decrease of RMB437,000 over the previous year. This is mainly due to
reduction in borrowings during the year.
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB7,322,000 (2011: RMB29,491,000).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND ACQUISITION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any significant
investment and acquisition during the year ended 31 December 2012.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP STRUCTURE
Please refer note 41 for our group structure.
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB18,900,000 (2011: RMB20,918,000), representing a decrease of
RMB2,018,000 compared with last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the settlement in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of RMB10,003,000 (2012: RMB1,010,000; 2011:
RMB11,013,000) during the year and the increase in balance and cash
by RMB4,399,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB147,490,000 (2011: RMB394,437,000), which
represented a decrease of RMB246,947,000. The decrease is mainly due
to the waiver of the amount due to a former corporate shareholder of
RMB256,623,000 (please refer to note 28 and 39(d) for details), and
amounts due to related companies (please refer to note 25), settlement in
bank borrowings, other borrowings.

Finance and banking facilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB6,604,000 (2011: RMB2,205,000), short-term bank
borrowings of approximately RMBNIl (2011: RMB20,000,000). The Group
has repaid all the bank borrowings during the year.
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012 was Nil% (2011:
61.4%), which is expressed as a percentage of the total bank borrowings
over the total assets.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Capital structure and financial resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
RMB118,167,000 (2011: RMB361,889,000). The Group’s operations
and investments are financed principally by its internal resources, other
borrowing and shareholders’ equity.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s income and expenses were mainly denominated in RMB.
Since the existing bank borrowings are repayable in RMB, there was no
material foreign exchange risk. The Group will review and monitor foreign
exchange risk from time to time and may enter into forward swap
contracts to hedge such risks where appropriate.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2010, 2011 and 2012 is set out below:

Functions
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Headcount for the year ended 31 December
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2010 2011 2012
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Sales and marketing HERTISHERE 22 6 5
Research & Development e 7 8 3
Production (including quality control) 47 (B 15 E 2124) 101 108 40
Finance and administration B 7% RATIER 33 31 25
Procurement BRAE 2 4 1
165 157 74
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Management’s Discussion And Analysis
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 74 employees (2011: 157
employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees in recognition and reward of their contribution. Other benefits
include contributions to retirement scheme.

STAFF QUARTERS

Workers and staff of the Group are provided with accommodation at
Yuyao City. The Directors confirm that, apart from the above
accommodation, there was no other housing benefit provided by the
Group to its staff.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group has not experienced any significant labour disputes or strikes
which have led to the disruption of its normal business operations. The
Directors consider that the Group maintains good relationship with its
employees.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
are set out on page 22 to page 24.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Company are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group is waiting for emergence of profitable opportunities before
expanding current operation. Active sourcings are done to fit our
production advantages to current market situation.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had complied
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31
March 2012) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Code”) in all material aspects except that no remuneration committee
had been set up as required by rule B1.1 of the Code. On 22 March
2012, the Company set up both the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Company has also complied with the code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) as
stated in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules except the following
deviations (Code Provisions A.2.1 and E.1.2):

Mr. Zhu Guo An is the Chairman of the board of directors. The Company
has no such title as the chief executive officer and the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Company.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 5.05A and 5.06 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive directors. The
Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still considers all
the existing independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the
management of the Company are committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of
high standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices
has always been one of the Group’s goals. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential for
effective management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) and the revised version of it which takes effect from April
2012 (the “New CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the GEM Listing Rules. Continuous efforts are made to review
and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices. To us,
maintaining high standards of corporate governance practices is not just
complying with the provisions but also the intent of the regulations to
enhance corporate performance and accountability.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code provisions of
the CG Code for the period from 1 January 2012 up to 31 March 2012
and the code provisions of the New CG Code for the period from 1 April
2012 to 31 December 2012, except where otherwise stated.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by Directors of the
Group as set out in Rule 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:

Executive Directors : Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong

Non-Executive Directors : Mr. Jiang Guo Ping
Mr. Zheng Xin
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan

Independent Non-Executive : Mr. Lu Xuan
Directors Mr. Lu Xian Tai
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Each independent non-executive director has given an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the Company
considers them to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2012, the Board comprises nine members, including
three executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors (the “INEDs”). Each of the members
possesses sufficient experience and qualification which enable them to
discharge their duties properly.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the Group’s
overall development strategies. The daily operation is delegated to the
executive directors and senior management. None of the INEDs is
interested in the business of the Group and their independence has to be
confirmed upon appointment or reappointment. Currently, there is no
financial, business, family or other relevant material relationship among
the existing directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the directors
shall be elected at the general meeting of the shareholders and the term
of office shall be one year, renewable upon reappointment or re-election.

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with reference to
the operation needs. During the year, the board held 6 meetings and the
attendance of the directors is set out on page 12.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, a total of 6 Board
meetings, 1 annual general meeting (“2011 AGM”) and 2 extraordinary
general meeting (“‘EGM”) were held and the attendance of each director

B ERCE

REE=Z
NIEN/NG|

——Ft=
= /\;"ETT6/A§$/E\TEI\;§
BERE(ZZ——FRRBFAEG]) R2RK

A=+—HIMBFE

1R R

is set out as follows: ARG ((RREFRIAE])  SUEFZHE
BEREINT
Number of meetings attended
in the year ended 31 December 2012 Regular
RBE-Z--F+-A=+-H Board
LEERHESERE meetings 2011 AGM EGM
B —EB--F

Name of director ] EZE882 RRBEFAE RRBHXAE
Mr. Zhu Guo An FERKE(FE -

(Chairman, appointed on 20 June 2012) R-ZE——FNF-+HEZL) 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TREREAE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (RZF—ZF A=1HEZ) 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong KELEE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (RZE——F~A-THEZ() 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping ZRTEE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R-F——F A-+HEZF) 4/4 0/0 1/1
Mr. Zheng Xin bt

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R-—F——F A-+HEZE) 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan HEREE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=F——F~A-+HEZ() 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Lu Xuan BERERRE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=—F——FA-+HEZ() 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Lu Xian Tai BERRAE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=F—=—F~HA=-+HEZ() 4/4 0/0 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PalgrE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=F——F~A-+HEZ() 4/4 0/0 11
Directors resigned during the year REABHMEIZES
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun (ex-chairman, resigned on 20 June 2012) UeErt (it R-FE——F

NAZTAEF) 2/2 1/1 1/1

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun (resigned on 20 June 2012) BEERE(R=F—ZFANAZTHFE) 2/2 11 1
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu (resigned on 20 June 2012) BEtES (R-E——FEAH-FHEHE) 0/2 0/1 11
Mr. Zheng Yi Song (resigned on 20 June 2012) RN (R-E——FNHA-+HEHL) 2/2 1/1 11
Mr. Liu Feng (resigned on 20 June 2012) ANERE (R-F——FNA-FHEIL) 2/2 11 11
Mr. Wang Wei Shi (resigned on 20 June 2012) TEBLE(R-F——FNA-THFIL) 2/2 1/1 11
Mr. Pang Jun (resigned on 20 June 2012) EBELE (RoE——EXH =1 HFHF) 2/2 11 11
Mr. Law Hon Hing Henry (resigned on 20 June 2012) BEESLE (R=FE— X f=+AFHF) 2/2 i il
Professor Fang Min (resigned on 17 August 2012) FEHE (R=FE——4%)| f++HEHF) 4/4 1/1 11
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The ex-chairman attended 2011 AGM to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders. Though some directors were unable to attend
2011 AGM due to other business engagements, the company secretary
and the auditors had attended the meeting to answer questions at the
meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and be
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating performance;
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and setting the
Group’s values and standards. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group to management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
that they accommodate the needs of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. At least
7 days notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors and they
can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit. The
agenda accompanying Board papers are sent to all directors at least 3
days before the date of every Board meeting in order to allow sufficient
time for the directors to review the documents.

Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all directors for their
perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The Board
also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary
information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled
to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhu Guo An (“Mr. Zhu”) is the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Zhu is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and policy making of the
Group.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer,
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term
which may be extended as each and the Company may agree.

The current articles of association of the Company provide that subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to time
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in continuous
professional development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The individual training record of each director received for the year ended
31 December 2012 is summarized below:

BE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE 8E=F
Pz 2 sg s 2 @RI e st an T

Attending seminar(s)/

programme(s)/conference(s) HEBRERS

relevant to the business or EERECEH®E

directors’ duties B BB2ER

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman) HEEE(EE) v
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang TEREA v/
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong KRELTE v
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping EHFEAE v
Mr. Zheng Xin Lpsi v v
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan FEBA A 4
Mr. Lu Xuan EHEREE v
Mr. Lu Xian Tai BERESRT A 4
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PRI 4

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any suitable
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
3 independent non-executive directors, who have reviewed the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012. All of them have
appropriate professional qualifications and/or accounting and/or related
financial management expertise. Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is
a member of the former or existing auditor of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website
and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Our Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality
of internal control and ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on, receiving and reviewing
reports from management and the auditors relating to the annual and
interim accounts, and monitoring the accounting and internal control
system in use throughout the Group.
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According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit RIERBBRESE  BRZE8SBFAE VBT
Committee shall be held at least 4 times a year. 5 meetings were held for 4k &% - HE-—ZT——F+-A=+—HIF
the year ended 31 December 2012. The attendance of each member is  E - %Vx/\ SERITTOREH - SMUKEZ
set out as follows: HEERESSINT

Number of meetings REBZE-ZE—_-F
attended in the +=ZBA=+—H1L

Name of members of BEREES financial year ended BREER
Audit Committee BEHE 31 December 2012 HESBERE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie el

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=ZF—Z—F A= HEZHF) 3/3
Mr. Lu Xuan BREREE

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=ZF—ZF NA-1THEZHF) 3/3
Mr. Lu Xian Tai BER R 5‘&;

(appointed on 20 June 2012) (R=ZF—Z—F NA-1THEZHF) 3/3
Directors resigned REABREIZES

during the year
Mr. Pang Jun BELE

(resigned on 20 June 2012) (R=ZF—ZF A=FHEE) 2/2
Mr. Law Hon Hing Henry EEE S E

(resigned on 20 June 2012) (R=ZF—ZF A=FHEE) 2/2
Professor Fang Min T

(resigned on 17 August 2012) (R=—F—=—F)\A++HEL) 2/2

At the meetings held during the year, in performing its duties in RERBITreH L EREBEARESERETHE
accordance with its terms of reference, the work performed by the Audit BEHHE - BEXZEZE2eMET TIEETE
Committee included:

(@)  review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal  (a) & R EBE A QA MEKE AR 2 B H
control system of the Company and its subsidiaries; W R NEPEEIE R A

(o)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of  (b) AEE=©EESEHE LIS #HE &

the re-appointment of the external Auditor and approval of their WEZNE - HAESRERE
remuneration;

()  determination of the nature and scope of the audit; and ) ErsEksHERESE: &

(d) review the financial statements for the relevant periods. o) BZEHEHEIMBEHRE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Lu Xuan is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available at the Company’s website and on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive directors, making recommendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code provisions to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

Meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a
year. 1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2012.
During the meeting, remuneration of the directors have been discussed
and no change has been proposed to the remuneration policy and the
directors’ remuneration.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

FMEES

ARFARZZE-——F=A-+-HKIZANLE
YHRUTEFEARZTFMZES(HFMEER
) EEFLALERFHINEESEE - HFMEER
GZBEBERNARRBUEREEHAZSHA
BRD R, -

FNZEazAe B ERERNEESLRAS
BEREMATER 2 HFMEZ LR A LR 2R
EENRREREZHFMBRRRERNESSE
R - FTE B & 23R ST RSB .2(c)i) 15
BTz TARERRTERTRSREEEHMAE
AREESFHEE -

FTNEZEeBFRAELBIT—REE - FTMEE
SEREBE_T——F+_A=+—HILFER
BITIREH® - ReRlM  ESHEESE -
B EERE S BOR RESFHBEL AR -

BB 2 HEBREIIMNT

Number of meetings RBZE-Z——#F

attended in the +ZA=+—H1L

Name of members of financial year ended HMREER
Remuneration Committee FHEZEEEREHRA 31 December 2012 HEERRH
Mr. Lu Xuan (Chairman) BT RE(EE) 11
Mr. Lu Xian Tai BERE RS 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRI 11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3 independent non-
executive directors. Mr. Lu Xian Tai is currently the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available at the Company’s website and on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board at least once a year, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
board members (select or make recommendations to the board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships), assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors, making
recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer; and
reporting to the board on its decisions or recommendations, unless there
are legal or regulatory restrictions.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.
1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2012. Issues
concerning the structure, size and composition of the board of directors
were discussed and no change has been proposed to the structure, size
and composition.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

REZRESE
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FEREET——F+_A=+—HILFER
BTIRgE SLIRTERESTS 28EH -
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B EZ HEERBFIAT

Number of meetings REBE-Z——F

attended in the +=—A=+—H1L

Name of members of financial year ended BBEER
Nomination Committee REZEERENA 31 December 2012 HES SR
Mr. Lu Xian Tai (Chairman) BERER LA (ZE) 1/1
Mr. Lu Xuan EHEREE 1/1

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie 205 o A
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and
prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of
the Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
risk management procedures and for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. The Board has conducted a review of, and is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the
Group.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and fulfillment of business objective. The
system includes a defined management structure with segregation of
duties and a cash management system such as monthly reconciliation of
bank accounts.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s material internal
controls and is of the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and on its
own observations, the Board is satisfied with present internal controls of
the Group.

BEREZ
B35 R 4

EREARARR 2 BMR R EBERATRM
EESRNAERENRER TEHRNEESE
o AMEEESRANEIERNRATIRR 2
REMERHEL MG

HINBIZBERESFE EETRHARARY
BERR P RBRACE B B AR R 2 AN 6 18 B 7%
WK - INERBEIRBEREZERER  HE
EEMREZZERAMBRRFELBILE
WEAARRBRREHRRSE 2ER - ZHEMEHZ
RREFRRANBLREMBEEA

REEEER AR ERE

EEREFEARAZARNERRARLRERE
BRF - ARAEERTAREARMEEZRN -
EERCHARERNIERRR IR NET TR
A WEIERERE

REBBEAONES  ERLEEREEETEA
Bz R - NEE 2 AERES IR R AT E A A IEIRE
BERKRERARIER  TEREFEREERS
Rz BB PEREBBR - ZRZREIEEMS
PREZATERRBLASEER R (NRTT
RPZEAYR) -

EEERVASEEEANEZZN YRR
ARRB G MU EERBRAFIZABERLAIAE
RED RS - RBEEFSEREHZEMRELRY
ETZER  EFEQYHAREE B AT A EEE 1R
BmE o

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 19

BRERERBNBRAR



Corporate Governance Report
AV A—A—\\ =+ /:|:
PRERWS

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 2012 and KTC Partners CPA Limited were
appointed as auditors of the Company on 2012 to fill the casual vacancy
so arising There have been no other change of auditor in the past three
years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid to the
Company’s auditors is set out as follows:

SN BAEM

EREHMEBAERAREFELARAZE
- B ——FREY MARANTR-E
—ZFEREMESTRFHEAER LA EEZE
Bl - LUBMZERE 2S5t - BT = FHIM - Wi
HAIZ B AN E o

REBE-ZT——F+ -_A=T—"BILWBFE"
XN FARBREE 2 ERHINOT

Fees paid/payable

BXf ENER

RMB’000

Services rendered RHRKE AREF T
Audit services =% RS 447

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho (“Mr. Tsao”) was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company on 24 November 2008. The biographical details of Mr.
Tsao are set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management”.

According to the newly introduced Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules,
Mr. Tsao has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company places great emphasis on its relationship and
communication with investors. The Company has numerous
communication channels, such as press conference and seminars, to
communicate with the media, analysts and fund managers. Designated
senior management staff holds dialogue with analysts, fund managers
and investors, who are also arranged to visit the Company and
investment projects from time to time, so as to keep them abreast of the
Group’s business and latest developments. In addition, investors can
also visit the Company’s website at www.wanhaoholdings.com for the
most updated information and the status of the business development of
the Group.

The Company has made some changes in constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2012. Investors can obtain the latest
constitutional documents of the Company from the Company’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management recognise the responsibility of
safeguarding the interest of shareholders of the Company and provide
highly transparent and real-time information on the Company so as to
keep the shareholders and investors abreast of the Company’s position
and help them to make the best investment decision. The Company
believes that maintaining good and effective communication with
shareholders can facilitate the shareholders’ understanding of the
business performance and strategies of the Group. The Board and senior
management also recognise the responsibility of safeguarding the interest
of shareholders of the Company. In order to safeguard the shareholders’
interest, the Company reports its financial and operating performance to
shareholders through annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports. Shareholders of the Company can also obtain information of the
Group in time through annual reports, interim reports, quarterly reports,
announcements, circulars, press releases and the Company’s website
www.wanhaoholdings.com.

The annual general meetings are an appropriate forum for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Shareholders can
raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance and
future development of the Group at annual general meetings.
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

55 BEENSABEEAE

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of 9 Directors including 3 executive
Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Guo An (7 B %), aged 56, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board, an executive director, compliance officer and authorized
representative of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu has been the
executive director of Wanli since April 2011. Mr. Zhu was the chairman of
Wanli (formerly known as #7/L & B 1%z R A 7 (Zhejiang Wanli Holding
Group Inc*) and Rk & 2 # %A PR 2 & (Yuyao Wanli Construction
Company Limited*) from January 1996 to April 2011. He has over 39
years of experience in management, operation and project development
in large property development companies in the PRC. Mr. Zhu is
responsible for the implementation of the objectives, policies and
strategies as well as day-to-day management and operations of Wanli
and its subsidiaries. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering
from H [ i & KX £ (China University of Geoscience) in 2008 and has
become a senior economist in 2008. He is a brother of Mr. Zhu Guo Dan.

Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (JT £ 58), aged 51, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Qi has been the general
manager of RYTT R ELINE 5B R A F (Yuyao Commercial Group
Company Limited* (“Yuyao”) since June 1996. Yuyao is beneficially
owned as to 90% by Mr. Qi and as to 10% by Madam Ma Xia Jun (f5&
&) (wife of Mr. Qi), and is principally engaged in import and export
trading.

Mr. Zhu Chun Rong (& & %), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu
has been appointed as the finance manager of Wanli (formerly known as
I B BIEIAR A (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and k™
B BERZAM AR (Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited®)) since
January 2007. He obtained his bachelor degree in applied mathematics
from Sichuan University (P9)11 A 22) in 1991.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (B ), aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Jiang has been
appointed as the deputy general manager of Wanli (formerly known as J#
IE B AR AR (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and &k &
E#® AR QA (Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited®) since
February 2000. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering from
AR K22 (China University of Geoscience) in 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management

55 BEENSABEEAE

Mr. Zheng Xin (2f  #F), aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zheng has been
appointed as a director of Wanli (formerly known as #/ L& B#AE G R A
&) (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and &k & B2 EZ AR A 7
(Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited*)) since January 2007.
Between December 2000 to January 2007, he was an operating general
manager of Wanli. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering

from AR E b & A 22 (China University of Geoscience) in 2010.

Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (&%), aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Zhu has been appointed
as a general manager of Wanli (formerly known as #1/T & B2 R A
7] (Zhejiang Wanli Holding Group Inc*) and &k & B2 X AR A 7
(Yuyao Wanli Construction Company Limited*)) since January 2007.
Between November 1999 to January 2007, he was a supervisor of Wanli.
He has over 30 years of experience in civil work in construction
companies in the PRC. He obtained a bachelor degree of civil engineering
from & B #h B K £ (China University of Geoscience) in 2008. He is a
brother of Mr. Zhu Guo An.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lu Xuan (E4%E%), aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Lu has been
appointed as the director of 2[5 RAR% (5 F R 72 & (Ningbo Yang Ming
Company Limited*) and 7 #k 1 7 % £ & (Yuyao Commercial Bureau®)
since May 1997. He graduated from F5#/& £ 28 K E (Harbin Agricultural
University) majoring in agricultural machinery in 1979.

Mr. Lu Xian Tai (BE #f Z=), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012. Mr. Lu has
been working as a deputy general manager and director of finance
department of 7 )T % B % 2 A R A & (Zhejiang Hualian Commercial
Building Company Limited*) since February 1998. He graduated from 1
M B 2 PR (Hangzhou College of Commerce) majoring in corporate
management in 1997.

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (38 &I %), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2012.
Mr. Kwok is currently a financial controller, company secretary and
authorised representative of a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Kwok is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Kwok holds a Master of
Professional Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, a Master of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open
University of Hong Kong and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).
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Directors, Supervisors And Senior Management
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. Mao Lihong, aged 31, is a Supervisor and does not hold any other
position in the Group. She graduated from Zhejiang University of
Technology in 2006. She holds a bachelor’s degree in Management
Sciences and also holds the title of Engineer. She is currently the
assistant to the chairman of Wan Li Group. She has over 6 years of
working experience in management and administration.

Ms. Shi Weina, aged 41, is a Supervisor and does not hold any other
position in the Group. She graduated from Tianjin University, and is
currently the Deputy General Manager of & B % (2@ 81 %5 A 7. She
has over 10 years of working experience in Finance.

Ms. Ma Ying, aged 31, is a Supervisor. She graduated from Xi'an FanYi
University in 2004. She joined the Group in 2004, and is currently the
director of the office. She has over 5 years of working experience in
administration.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Company Secretary

Mr. Tsao Hoi Ho, aged 48, is the financial controller of the Group. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Warwick. He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and member of Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand, Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, Australasian Institute of Banking & Finance plus Bankers’
Institute of New Zealand. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tsao was the
Qualified Accountant for a listed company, whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tsao joined the Group in November 2008 and
has over 19 years’ experience in auditing, finance and company
secretary.
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Report of the Directors
EERHEE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the design, manufacture and
sale of intelligent controller systems for various consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and the assembly of mobile phones. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments
is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 35.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2012,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 38. The
Company has no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2012,

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), which will oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
EERHEE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 128.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or agreed to be
granted by the Company to any of its Directors, Supervisors or
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Chairman, appointed on 20 June 2012)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (appointed on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Zhu Chun Rong (appointed on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Liu Xiao Chun (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Chen Zheng Tu (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (appointed on 20 June 2012)
Mr. Zheng Xin (appointed on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (appointed on 20 June 2012)
Mr. Zheng Yi Song (resigned on 20 June 2012)
Mr. Liu Feng (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Wang Wei Shi (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lu Xuan (appointed on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Lu Xian Tai (appointed on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (appointed on 20 June 2012)
Mr. Pang Jun (resigned on 20 June 2012)

Mr. Law Hon Hing Henry (resigned on 20 June 2012)
Professor Fang Min (resigned on 17 August 2012)
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Report of the Directors
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EETREE

Supervisors E=x

Mrs. Mao Lihong EMTL L

Mrs. Shi Weina b3 Yodum

Mrs. Ma Ying BEzt
Members of the audit committee ERZEEEKE
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman) RIS ()
Mr. Lu Xuan BT E

Mr. Lu Xian Tai BEREZR ST
Members of the remuneration committee FMNEEEKE
Mr. Lu Xuan (Chairman) BERTE(EE)
Mr. Lu Xian Tai PEFEZR A

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS A
Members of the nomination committee REZEEKE
Mr. Lu Xian Tai (Chairman) BEFE R (%)
Mr. Lu Xuan BEEELTE

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS A

In accordance with Articles 89 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of  1RIBEAAFTN AT ZRMAIESI RFE 11215 B
Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the Board since  FERFHEFEASURHESTSEZENESENE
last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be elected at the coming EERKEREAS HESRE  fH=F %
shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years. A director or %5k Bs & Al FMEHAE S 38 E F -

supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration

of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, Ex EENSAEBEAENEE
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior E%E EELRSHEEAENEEHENE22EE
management are set out on page 22 to page 24. F248 o
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Report of the Directors
EERHEE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years from his/her date of
appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a Supervisor and
thereafter subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice to the other party.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors or Supervisors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 31 December 2012, the interests and long positions of each Director,
Chief Executive and Supervisor of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”), were as
follows:
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Report of the Directors
EERHEE

Ordinary shares of RMB0.10 each of the Company as at 31 December
2012:

Long positions in shares

Domestic Shares

Name of Director/ of RMBO0.10 each

R-Z——F+ A=+ HARFAESKREEA
RE010TTH TR -

R HEFRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
held in same

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Chief Executive/ (the “Domestic class of the registered
Supervisor Shares”) held Nature of interest securities capital
g REE EEESY] =k
BEE FETHK AR¥010THAER EHEBA BEAXRHA
AB BEEHE TRERDHE ERME BERESL BHREDL
Mr. Zhu Guo An 204,610,230 Domestic Interest of controlled 55.30% 40.92%
HBZ T E Shares (note 2) corporation (note 1)
204,610,230 IR E % R EE R
(Mi7E2) (BMH3E1)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan 102,289,770 Domestic Interest of controlled 27.65% 20.46%
FEBA S A Shares (note 2) corporation (note 1)
102,289,770 R A E AR FirrE R
(KizE2) (BF=E1)
Mr. Qi Yong Qiang 63,100,000 Domestic Beneficial owner 17.05% 12.62%

TTE®REAE Shares (note 2) EREAA
63,100,000 % A1 & %
(MizE2)
Notes:
(1) Wan Li Group Company Limited (a joint stock limited company incorporated in the

PRC) is beneficially owed as to 66.67% by Mr. Zhu Guo An and as to 33.33% by Mr.
Zhu Guo Dan and as such, Mr. Zhu Guo An and Mr. Zhu Guo Dan are deemed to be
interested in the 204,610,230 Shares and 102,289,770 Shares respectively.

2) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each, in the registered capital of the
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors,
Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.

(1) BEELREEMBHBRRAF(— R MK
HERAR) DEFERAREEREBRALED I B RE
4 66.67% 5 33.33% M4 - EUt - BT L RERE
R AR B B 204,610,230 B A% 19 2. 102,289,770
AP B R o

@ AAREMERTFEEEARE010TTHAERKIIIA
ARERBRAIRIIERR -

fr EXFTRBEESN  RAFENTARRE - S8
B IETHRABREF(BERRSZEBR
R\ HF20) RA R R SRR A E (&
5 MHEGRG) kDB EAEE - KD
BRSO AT A BB %F B R -

B EXFTtESN - RAFENERNRRE > ARF
FEMBARBMERTLEMRY  BEARARE
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HEQREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

According to the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
section 336 of the SFO, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had

been notified the following substantial shareholders’ were interested in

5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors, Chief

Executives and Supervisors.

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

FERRAAE QARG HERS

BIEBES KA ERAIERBRRTFENER
BREREZMER RZEBE-—-F+-R=+—
B ARREMAEUTEIZRREEAARCHE
TTIAR % A EHEes - im e m W AR A £ X
FIBERHES TETHRABMEENERA -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of same class the registered
Name of shareholder shares held Nature of interest of securities capital
15 E & A L i
EHEBA BEAXRHA
BEME BB RGO EE EEME BERESL HREDL
Wan Li Group 306,900,000 Domestic Beneficial owner 82.95% 61.38%
Company Limited Shares (note 2) EmEEA
EEEREERD 306,900,000 % A & %
BRAF (Mi7E2)
Zhu Guo An 204,610,230 Domestic Interest of controlled 55.30% 40.92%
HEZ Shares (note 2) corporation
204,610,230 IR & % RirrEER
(HizE2)
Zhu Guo Dan 102,289,770 Domestic Interest of controlled 27.65% 20.46%
B Shares (note 2) corporation
102,289,770 R A E AR R EEER
(KizE2)
Qi Yong Qiang 63,100,000 Domestic Beneficial owner 17.05% 12.62%
JTE R Shares EnAA
63,100,000 % A & %
Martin Currie China 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
Hedge Fund Limited (note 1) REKE
14,245,000 % H B iz 5
(ME1)
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%

Management Limited

(note 1)
14,245,000 f% H % J& 19
(PfFE1)
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(1) “H Share(s)” represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10
each in the registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars. Save as disclosed above, as at 31
December 2012, the Directors are not aware of any person, not being a Director, Chief
Executive or Supervisor, have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

2) Wan Li Group Company Limited (a joint stock limited company incorporated in the
PRC) is beneficially owed as to 66.67% by Mr. Zhu Guo An and as to 33.33% by Mr.
Zhu Guo Dan and as such, Mr. Zhu Guo An and Mr. Zhu Guo Dan are deemed to be
interested in the 204,610,230 Shares and 102,289,770 Shares respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 26.1%
— five largest customers combined 66.9%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 23.5%
— five largest suppliers combined 61.8%

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
Appendix 15 Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWES

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business that directly or indirectly competes with the
business of the Group or has any other conflicts of interest.

AUDITORS

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 2012 and KTC Partners CPA Limited were
appointed as auditors of the Company on 2012 to fill the casual vacancy
so arising There have been no other change of auditor in the past three
years.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Guo An
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 22 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN BN E S

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Fofs &=t 6 FH A R 8]

Tel E35: (852)2770 8232

Fax 1% &:(852) 2770 8378

E-mail & F# 45: info@ktccpa.com.hk

Room 501, 502 & 508, 5/F., Mirror Tower,

61 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
FHBAFER D ERIEHE61 G E P oo 201, 502K508F

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

(formerly known as Ningbo Yidong Electronic Company Limited)
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35
to 122, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Except as described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
However, because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of
opinion paragraphs, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN BN E S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material fundamental uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
concerning the adoption of the going concern basis, being the basis on
which the consolidated financial statements have been prepared.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which
indicates that the Group incurred a consolidated loss attributable for the
owners of the Company of approximately RMB7,322,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2012, and had consolidated net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB128,590,000 and
RMB118,167,000 respectively as at 31 December 2012. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the successful
outcome of the positive cash flows expected to be generated from the
Group’s future operations and successfully obtain new working capital,
and to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity or debt securities
and to negotiate with certain bankers to obtain additional banking
facilities in order to meet the Group’s future working capital and financial
requirements.

We consider that appropriate disclosures have been made in such
consolidated financial statements concerning the relevant material
uncertainty, but the inherent uncertainties surrounding the circumstances,
under which the Group might successfully continue to adopt the going
concern basis are so extreme, we have disclaimed our opinion on
material uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustment that
would be necessary if the Group failed to operate as a going concern.
Had the going concern basis not been used, adjustments would have to
be made to reduce the value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets as current assets.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION: DISCLAIMER OF VIEW
GIVEN BY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. In all other respects, in
our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chow Yiu Wah Joseph

Practising Certificate Number: PO4686

Hong Kong
22 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

/\\/T\I:I %EJ‘I %

for the year ended 31 December 2012
HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htsr ARBT T AREBTFT
Revenue Ik & 10 9,180 8,689
Cost of sales SHER A (14,823) (19,927)
Gross loss e (5,643) (11,238)
Other income Hapg A 10 2,778 8,043
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (584) (937)
Administrative expenses TRER (9,691) (21,673)
Finance costs & R AN 12 (1,365) (1,802)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB KR RIER
equipment and prepaid lease payment MERIE Y EE 8) (3,430)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZUE 42 6,377 812
Reversal for claims, net BEI=RE  F5 32 770 634
Loss before tax BREBATER (7,366) (29,591)
Income tax expense FrS /i 13 - -
Loss for the year FRER 14 (7,366) (29,591)
Other comprehensive income Hib2mUWKA
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETSE R EN 25
translation of foreign operations - 1,215
Exchange differences reclassified to profit & — R & A & &= 4 B IE X =58
or loss on disposal of a subsidiary EFHEEES (5,535) -
(5,535) 1,215
Total comprehensive expenses for FRANEEEXELE > IBRHE
the year, net of tax (12,901) (28,376)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEEFERNES:
Owners of the Company RNATHER A (7,322) (29,491)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AR S (44) (100)
(7,366) (29,591)
Total comprehensive expenses UTATEGZHEBEXREE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABER A (12,857) (28,276)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR I 2 (44) (100)
(12,901) (28,376)
Loss per share BRESE 18
Basic (cents per share) ER(ERARES) (1.46) (5.90)
Diluted (cents per share) B3 (BRARES) N/A 738 N/A i A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 December 2012
AT ——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-CZfF —=——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
btat AR®T T AREEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KEE 19 4,672 5,579
Investment property EME 20 1,152 1,210
Prepaid lease payment B ERE 21 4,599 4,841
10,423 11,630
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 4,420 3,127
Trade receivables TEUNE SR 23 3,647 2,154
Prepayments, deposits and TEHIE  Ze Kk
other receivables Hfth E U BR F 24 1,010 11,013
Paid in advances B AR FIR 2,977 2,161
Prepaid lease payment TEERE 21 242 242
Amounts due from a related company FEU —FEIREE A R IE 25 = 16
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBIIRS 26 6,604 2,205
18,900 20,918
CURRENT LIABILITIES pE=R
Trade payables ERTE SRR 27 48,856 49,596
Other payables and accruals HihERBEERRIETER 27 50,400 32,815
Receipt in advances U R IE 826 3,280
Amount due to a former corporate R — R EE AR A
shareholder 28 - 202,607
Amounts due to directors FENESRIA 29 427 816
Amounts due to related companies FES R E N R FRIE 25 - 32,779
Amount due to a major shareholder FEft—% X ERREZIE 30 33,041 28,810
Dividends payables FERIAR B 31 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims =EBE 32 - 4,544
Other borrowing HEMEE 33 9,500 14,750
Bank borrowings RITIEE 34 - 20,000
147,490 394,437
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (128,590) (373,519)
NET LIABILITIES FEE (118,167) (361,889
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re ISR

At 31 December 2012
AT ——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—B——fF —E——fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HaE AR¥T T ARBTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRREE

Share capital &N 35 50,000 50,000
Reserves ] (168,023) (411,789)

Equity attributable to owners AAREE AELER
of the Company (118,023) (861,789)
Non-controlling interests IR (144) (100)
(118,167) (861,889)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 122 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2013 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Guo An
HEZ
Director

EF

EIBEEF IR ANFAVBRRIIEEZTEN
TR -=F-AC T HEERRRETE

Zhu Chun Rong

REH

Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN A
'ﬁ\w\ /\,.\u,.\@J il%

for the year ended 31 December 2012

HZE ZHFFZA=T—HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
P YNGiE 2PN 3
Statutory Non-
Share Capital Other surplus  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
EERS
R EXGE Hittf e AES EREE Y01 Nt FERER @t
(Note 35)  (Note40()  (Note 40(i)  (Note 40ii)
(HizE35)  (MIskdof)  (BHsEdoq))  (PIE40i)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
GEEY GEY
1 January 2011 —T——F—-f-H 50,000 40,449 - 24,998 4,320 (453,280) (333,513) - (333,513)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (29,491) (29,491) (100) (29,591)
Other comprehensive income £ A A 2 EUA
for the year - - - - 1,215 - 1,215 - 1,215
Total comprehensive income X2 EYA (%)
(expenses) for the year ok - - - - 1,215 (29,491) (28,276) (100) (28,376)
At 31 December 2011 and R_Z——F
1 January 2012 +ZA=+—Bk
—Z-—f-f-f 50,000 40,449 - 24,998 5535  (482,771) (361,789 (100) (361,889
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (7,322) (7,322 (44) (7,366)
Other comprehensive income A2 EHA
for the year - - - - (5,635) - (5,635) - (5,535)
Total comprehensive income  ERZEKA (Hx)
(expenses) for the year Et - - - - (5,539) (7,322) (12,857) (44) (12,901)
Waiver of amounts duetoa RN FIRELE) %
former corporate shareholder ~ #A% R —ZANEA
upon change of shareholding ~ FREE 518
in the Company - - 256,623 - - - 256,623 - 256,623
At 31 December 2012 R-B--f
+=ZA=+-H 50,000 40,449 256,623 24,998 - (490,093) (118,023) (144) (118,167)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=ZAN ==
,\\/T\ Eﬁi/m_ﬁg%
for the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_Z——F+_A=1+—HIL%E

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Loss before tax BRFE AR 1S (7,366) (29,591)
Adjustments for: ERTFER BE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BiETEN R ERE 242 242
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMRETE 1,079 2,067
Depreciation of investment properties BEYMERE 58 58
Finance costs BhE AR 1,365 1,802
Impairment loss recognised in respect of TE - BB M REER
property, plant and equipment RRE 1B 1,225 1,757
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MIFEERAREREE
inventories = 5,614
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLEWE 5 BR R HER AR E R 18
trade receivables = 141
Impairment loss recognised in respect of PLE R UR R AR E BB
other receivables = 8,255
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BLIEW — IR E A IR HER
the amount due from a former Eo)CRIEN SE=
related company 16 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised RO 5t PRI E 5 IR R Y
in respect of trade receivables VEREEN E= (47) (190)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised T3] Bt H P W BR SR IR Y
in respect of other receivables REEE = (7)
Bank interest income RITH BHA (3) 3)
(Reversal) provision for claims, net (B[O RERME  F5E (770) (634)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE - BEMEE
equipment 8 3,430
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR Mk (6,377) 812)
Waiver of amounts due to directors BEEMNESHE (416) (4,133)
Waiver of trade and other payables HWREH MEMREMIRR (919) (280)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A TH A E
%/T\ = fﬁi/}lbi%
for the year ended 31 December 2012
HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Operating cash flows before movements EELSSRHINEERSRE
in working capital (11,905) (12,284)
Increase in inventories FEEN (1,293) (2,414)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables FEME 5 BR5R (4800 IRk 2 (1,446) 1,053
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, TERTFRIE ~ 1@ R E A EUER K
deposits and other receivables (3%4n) R 10,003 52,000
(Increase) decrease in paid in advances BT B (8 hn) w4 (816) 1,558
Decrease in amount due from a director Ul — BB B RIER = 17
Decrease in trade and bills payables e 2 SRR R E R (740) 97)
Increase (decrease) in other payables HEab R ERT & AE M ORD)
and accruals 19,346 (1,645)
Decrease in receipt in advances S & D R (2,454) (3,469)
Increase (decrease) in amount due to FES— B BIAE AR FIBIE 1N
a former corporate shareholder CRA) 54,016 (7,573
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to directors  fEftE EFZIEE N OF L) 27 (1,210)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FEfTRAE R A RIE O ) 180N
related companies (32,779) 860
Increase in amount due to a major shareholder FES — 2 F B AR RIEE AN 4,231 28,810
Decrease in provision for claims RERBER D (3,774) (1,340)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS REEEFRBES 32,416 54,266
Income tax expense FrS R - -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEERBRSFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32,416 54,266
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=ZAN = =
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-_Z——F+_A=1+—HIL%E

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEETH
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—EMB AR S IAE - 1,990
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWXE  KERRE (1,405) (3,105)
Interest received BF B 3 3
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES #®&EEBFMARESFE (1,402) (1,112)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
New bank borrowings raised spﬁi* RITEE - 20,000
New other borrowing raised FEEMEE - 14,750
Repayment of bank borrowings 1§ BIRITEE (20,000) (84,259
Repayment of other borrowing EEEMES (5,250) -
Interest paid AL (1,365) (1,802)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES R&EEE AR TE (26,615) (61,311)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBSESEER ENFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,399 1,843
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BNERERRESSEER
1 JANUARY 2,205 363
Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes MERFEHTE - 1)
6,604 2,205
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RT+-A=+—HHERER
31 DECEMBER Re%EER
Represented by: B
— bank balances and cash — RITEHBRES 6,604 2,205
6,604 2,205
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Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2012
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ningbo WanHao Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
joint stock limited liability company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the Annual
Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”). Other than the subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong
which functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”), the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are RMB.

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
sale of intelligent controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and the assembly of mobile phones in the
PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) have given following consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group.

The Group incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB7,322,000 for the year ended 31
December 2012 and, as of the date, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB128,590,000 and
RMB118,167,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liability in the
normal course of business. Nevertheless, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from 31 December 2012 on the basis that:

(i) the Directors anticipates that the Group will generate positive
cash flows from its future operations and successfully obtain
new working capital from a major shareholder that will provide
continuous financial support of the Group; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B R R P ot

for the year ended 31 December 2012
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BASIS OF PREPARATION — Continued

(i)  to raise funds by way of issuing additional equity or debt
securities and to negotiate with certain bankers to obtain
additional banking facilities, if necessary.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to the
consolidated financial statements to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Asset;
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets;
and
As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in 2012.

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure requirements
for transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These
amendments are intended to provide greater transparency around
risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred but the
transferor retains some level of continuing exposure in the asset.
The amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the period.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the amendments to
HKFRS 7 in the current year has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the general
principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of an asset. Specifically, under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property
are presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in
certain circumstances.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the amendments to
HKAS 12 in the current year has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

(as part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the
title of which is Annual Improvements to HKFRSs (2009-2011
Cycle). The effective date of these amendments is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial
position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position only when
the retrospective application, restatement or reclassification has a
material effect on the information in the third statement of financial
position and that related notes are not required to accompany the
third statement of financial position.

The adoption of other amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 12
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Financial Instruments'

Consolidated Financial Statements'

Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities’

Fair Value Measurement'

Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income*

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets*

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such
as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Continued

The amended offsetting disclosures are required for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

FERAHIREETERBMBRESE
ATEEMBREER] — &

EREHERERF(BITR)[€F
EERTHEETRIEE | REBMK
BELUF7THR(BITR) [HE — =
HEERTHABEERKE] — &

REREBT 2 EERBEERAR _T—=F
—A-BRZEKARZFEMEARZESF
EHRA A - B2 RETRAS
WA A AL BAfE 2 B # - AT - &
S EAERRE (BTN REE-F—N
F-A—Rgz&REzFERRT A&
M WATIAEWER o

BEBMBREENFOR[SMTA]

KRR AEBONTEY HREERIE
RIlEAMEMEESERH B HES -
RoB—BEETHEEHBEEEREQ
ROELMEEHERIBIARE L ER
2B% o

FBI SRS ERIFEOR Y X BMTHM
o -

o REBBUBHEEREIR  FE
EEBEAEREIR M TE:
HRANT B BREAZEERSRE
B EROREHERANRDFER
E-LER MEEREABAMAEN
RURBENRERZEHRE - UK
ERXNAEBREREERSE T
BZAMRERZEBRE  —KH
RER ST HRRIZEHEKATE -
PrAEMERRE MEAREGRE
BMERRZAFETE < 1o R
BEAVHRELENEON - BEA
TRHEEEREMEZEKRAF 2
FIRARE (LFFIEEEE) 2 H
BATEZE  ERERA—RNE

AR -

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 47

PR GERAT



Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

BHE—

3.

48

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:
— Continued

o The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to
the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK
(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control should
be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures — Continued

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided
that all of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that the application of these five standards
would not have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances.
In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair
value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended
by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — Continued

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the new
Standard may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for defined
benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations
and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of
changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor
approach” permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19. The
amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the
net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the plan
deficit or surplus.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits —
Continued

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and require retrospective
application with certain exceptions. The directors anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 19 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1
July 2013 and that the application of the amendments to HKAS 19
may have impact on amounts reported in respect of the Groups’
defined benefit plans. However, the directors have not yet
performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the application of the
amendments and hence have not yet quantified the extent of the
impact.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new or
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Basis of consolidation — Continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.
Results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received or receivable during the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods and sale of scrap materials are
recognised when goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Impairment losses on tangible assets — Continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
accounting standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other accounting
standard.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Foreign currencies — Continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial statements and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of foreign
operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals, the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the additions attaching
to then and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income/a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest
is treated as a government grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on
prevailing market interest rates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in to profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Research and development expenditure — Continued

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated useful cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from a director/a related company and bank balances and cash)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
T —FFR

BEAGHHEE — &
ERMTA — &
LRAE

AEENESREED RRAEFEBYIRK -
BREDBIEBRREMEEZ HEERE -
WRANTHERFEE - MIBEUALEETAE
ENEMEERR S A EERR N -HE
R AERTABEERFTERRTISRL
SEPIHFTHRRARNEENEREE

=
BHE-

B FE

ERMEENFEEREEZBIHKRAR
REBHRBEDNEBMAZTE - BEN
KNESREEZTRRERFY  BE
HifE (i & 58) AT AT E MRS WA (B
FrA B S RER BB FIR - X HHA
RE M ERITRAKE D 2 B ) 1EHERS
REV SRR OREFEZFIE

RESTAMS « FERADREEAE
EARER -

B R IERIRA

ERREERSEERRT IS ERENE
ERAEENREENETESREE -
RUFHERR - ERREURR (BREEK
BHERN - e REMERERR - BR—
RER/ —HBBERRARBRBITERK
Be) DRAERN R A LS HR AR IR
EREMBEBEAR R TXEZREERE
BEROEERR)



Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

for the year ended 31 December 2012
HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When trade receivables and other receivables are
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. The Group’s financial
liabilities comprise other financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued 4.

Financial instruments — Continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — Continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Transactions with owners

The Group applies a policy of treating loans from shareholders as
transactions between owners in their capacity as owners. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss from the waiver of loans. Any
deemed contribution from the shareholder arising from the waiver is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — Continued
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to a former corporate shareholder/
directors/related companies/major shareholder, dividends payables,
other borrowing and bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
Financial instruments — Continued
Derecognition — Continued

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligations, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”) and
state-managed retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person, (i) has control or joint control over the
Group; (i) has significant influence over the Group; or {jii) is a
member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group; or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

@iy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
T —FFR

EXEHEE - &

RERBEEEER

FEMBRRAKRPORTEREEL B
RITRFERERIMAR/=@MARIAT
H 2 HITF 5K

BES

ETIERT - BRETHRRAERNEH

BREE

@ BETR—BALTHZATHRED
%@b Mz AL« () SISk ﬂ? RN

7R

S EAEEEEREE Y(lu)

RASBEYAEEFGRRNEE
ABRER—FZKE 3

b) BEFTAER  BHATIEME
f
() ZEREAEEER—£EH
MERAT

(i)

(i)

(V)

(vi)

- g‘é“%%ﬁi%lﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁéﬂ
32 LRI —EENE

~E - MEBARKRERME R
Al

ZEREAEBEAR—F=FH
AAA/JE%

—HERAFE=-FEENES
m% mME—EBRAEZE=F

E/jﬁki)\)\/\ﬂ :
ZEEX@QETEMNALTES
s EES] &
REQNBEBEEMALHZER
EEATELBZEE (X%
EENERAG)ETEEBEA
g o

\
A



Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—
5.

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimates (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessments of the going concern assumptions involve making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors considers that the Group has ability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty— Continued

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
investment property

Property, plant and equipment and investment property are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses annually the
residual value and the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment and investment property and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such difference may impact the
depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed in the
future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate level of
estimated credit losses. No impairment loss was recognised for the
year (2011: RMB141,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

The policy for recognition of impairment loss of other receivables of
the Group is determined by the management based on the
evaluation of collectability and management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each receivables.
No impairment loss was recognised for the year (2011:
RMB8,255,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts exceed
their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. The value in use calculations
require the use of estimates such as the future revenue and
discount rates. An impairment loss of approximately RMB1,225,000
was recognised for the year (2011: RMB1,757,000).

Provision for claims

During the current and prior years, the Group had been involved in
certain litigations and claims in respect of overdue payment of
construction works, overdue trade payables and refund of trade
deposits (Note 32). The Directors determine the provision for claims
based on their best estimates according to their understanding of
legal advice. Where the final outcome of the claim and negotiation
with the respective creditors is different from the estimation made
by the Directors, such difference will impact the provision for claims
in the year in which such determination is finalised. A reversal for
claims of approximately RMB770,000 was made for the year (2011:
Reversal of RMB634,000).

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slowing-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The management estimates the net realisable value for
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting
period and make allowance for obsoletes items. No impairment
loss was recognised for the year (2011: RMB5,614,000).

5.

RS HE R AT TABEEN
FERR — &

EEF AR ENEERR — &

BYE - BERREEZ B EEE

BEAEBOSEEE W BEKR
ERRESBDREREEEBBETUKE
CEMSEMER - I ESEEAFE
BIHERANE 2 EBEEEFRAEEZHE 2
BaE - FREENEERERMG
AR SR UR RS BRI R o FNHER — B E
BB AR HE1,2250007C( —F ——4
AR#1,757,0007T) °

FERE

REFERBEFEAR  AEESRHR
ERBHEETRERNR  BHENESEK
REREREHRBESOFARRE (T

32) - RBEEERBANER  EFERN

HEEGABERERE - WRERESR
BEEAETHENREERBESZE
HEt TR AEREESN&REEEEH

EEHNFEER
EHAREET770,00070 (==
AR 634,0007T) °

TERERE  FARABER
—— % [

FEBiE
AEEEEBN S MERRELREIN

WHERATHEASREE 0B RHH
EFmEHEE EEBXERESAH
MEBEZEEREERBAMNMRAEZEEKREN
AR FEETHE AEBRS RS
REEMETEZBER WHBNREE
LR - FATEBERREBB(ZE——
& AR¥5614,0007T) °

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 73

PR GERAT



Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

BHE—

5.

74

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amount that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period which such determination is made.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which includes
other borrowing and bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 33 and
Note 34 respectively, amounts due to a former corporate
shareholder/major shareholder as disclosed in Notes 28 and 30 net
of bank balances and cash as disclosed in Note 26 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As a part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The overall strategy
of the Group remained unchanged during the two years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

7. MBERER

Categories of financial instruments TR AR
2012 2011
—E—_—F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Financial assets THEE
Loan and receivables (including cash and B ERER K
cash equivalents): (BERSRBEFEER)
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 3,647 2,154
Deposits and other receivables R M HE M AR 1,010 10,763
Amount due from a related company BUS— IR E A FIFIE - 16
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB AR S 6,604 2,205
11,261 15,138
Financial liabilities 2HEAE
Other financial liabilities measured B HR AT ER
at amortised cost: HEtamats
Trade payables BREZER 48,856 49,596
Other payables and accruals HAth e AR IR B A 50,400 32,815
Amount due to a former corporate shareholder &t — & R A AR R 218 - 202,607
Amounts due to directors FERTEEFIE 427 816
Amounts due to related companies FESRE A R F0E - 32,779
Amount due to a major shareholder B —R2EEREFIE 33,041 28,810
Dividend payables FET A% 2 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims RIERE - 4,544
Other borrowing Hib g & 9,500 14,750
Bank borrowings RITEE = 20,000
146,664 391,157
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a related
company, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amount due to a former corporate shareholder,
amounts due to directors, related companies, a major shareholder,
dividend payables, provision for claims, other and bank borrowings
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose them primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group’s foreign currencies
are mainly HKD. The Group has certain portion of the trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other
payables are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Currency risk — Continued

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they related.

BHEAREENEERBEE — &

«

M

Ak — &

FRIRAEENBERREEREER
B (AR Z AR BRI ER UMY
S BEHE) TSI B BB kg -

\una m

Assets BE
Liabilities =X

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis is presented for currency risk as the Directors
considered that the effect is insignificant under the linked exchange
rate system between RMB and HKD and the HKD denominated
bank balances and other receivables are insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to a cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 34 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk related to
bank balances carried at prevailing market rate. However, such
exposure is minimal to the Group as the bank balances are all
short-term in nature.

2012 2011

—E——fF %

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBTF T

79 36

(427) (2,369)

& [E B AL A SN SR BUR B

1 JE g BT HNE [E g ﬂzﬁﬁé‘,lé%‘eﬁv%)%
¥R EARINE R o

MRNEER R AR BB T 2 [ X5
ETZHETRERANBTHEZRITHE
R EMEEERRSE IR - B2 AR
SRR 2IMERBRED

A= b

AEEEREATERITEEFENRESR
SFERRE (FEE28M5E34) °

AEE TR HE R IR BTSN X RO R
THEABENRDREN KRR - A
MRRITAREBRE ALY - Bt ER
WRAEET = BIRTFEM -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Interest rate risk — Continued

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities is
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

As of 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general 50 basis
point increase or decrease in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s loss for the
year and accumulated losses by approximately RMBNil (2011:
RMB58,000).

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
a change in interest rates had occurred at the end of each reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date. The 50 basis
point increase or decrease represents directors’ assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting period. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to the failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debtor at the end of the reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 77% (2011: 38%)
and 86% (2011: 91%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES — Continued

Credit risk — Continued

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2012 as
its financial assets due within one year was less than its financial
liabilities due within one year. The Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB128,590,000 as at 31 December 2012. The
liquidity of the Group depends upon the positive cash flows
expected to be generated from the Group’s future operations and
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the
Group’s future working capital and financial requirements. Details of
which are set out in Note 2.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 8.
AND POLICIES — Continued

Liquidity risk — Continued

BHEAREENEERBEE — &

nEBEERR — &

Liquidity tables REESE
Weighted Within Total
average 1yearor undiscounted Carrying
interest rate % on demand cash flow amounts
i —£R RERH
FRIE HERE BRERE BEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 31 December 2012 N-BE--—F+-A=+-H
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: 1R 4R 518 2
HitemeE:
Trade payables ERESER - 48,856 48,856 48,856
Other payables and accruals HihENERS &ﬁ‘é HEH - 50,400 50,400 50,400
Amounts due to directors ENEZZT - 427 427 427
Amount due to a major shareholder JEfF— %EEHx% - 33,041 33,041 33,041
Dividends payables FEfTRR S - 4,440 4,440 4,440
Other borrowing HifeE - 9,500 9,500 9,500
146,664 146,664 146,664
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&+-HA=1+-AH
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost: 1% $ 5K 451/ BR 2
HieRAaE:
Trade payables B SRR - 49,596 49,596 49,596
Other payables and accruals HiENRD R ETER - 32,815 32,815 32,815
Amount due to a former corporate e —ZR1E AR R
shareholder - 202,607 202,607 202,607
Amounts due to directors [ENEEZE - 816 816 816
Amounts due to related companies NI YNGRV - 32,779 32,779 32,779
Amount due to a potential investor/ R —2EEREE/
major shareholder FERRTE - 28,810 28,810 28,810
Dividends payables FERR S - 4,440 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims REBE - 4,544 4544 4,544
Other borrowing HifEE 2.45 14,810 14,810 14,750
Bank borrowings BITEE 7.87 20,651 20,651 20,000
391,868 391,868 391,157
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10.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to
outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income for the year
are as follows:

TE -+ ZA=T—HILFE
FAIR VALUE 9.
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair value
due to their short-term maturities.
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 10.

ATE

SRHEERSBAEN A TERENER
R %8S 7B B 0 (B 1
R B -

EERR BAVBRRPREHHEKAR
ARNEREENERABMNREE
DA EE R A QA ERE

W s & E A A

Wik MAREENEERE  EEAKHE
ASNRE P EE M 2 4R AR R0
BRITH0 K S5 5 AR B MO B TR IR RO B -

AEB M FE U MEMP AT :

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Revenue U zs
Sales of controller systems for consumer HEHBEERNLETFHR
electrical and electronic appliances and I FIES R M HE
income from sales of small electrical NRUE ZREY U A
appliances 4,037 2,685
Sales of controller systems for mobile HE MBS EFIEHRERL
phones and income from sales and SHE EE T E B EA A
assembly of mobile phones 5,143 6,004
9,180 8,689
Other income H A A
Bank interest income RITFEHA 3 3
Sales of scrap materials EERIRSHE R 830 2,172
Government grants recognised as income EREBW AR BIT/EENS 120 140
Reversal of impairment loss recognised O gh U E 5 R R
in respect of trade receivables BEEE 47 190
Reversal of impairment loss recognised P& (0] fh E b B UK BR SR SR Y
in respect of other receivables RIEEE = 7
Waiver of amounts due to directors N ENEEHIR 416 4,133
Waiver of trade and other payables MR E 5 R HAMENER 919 280
Rental income WA 253 250
Sundry income HMIAWA 190 868
2,778 8,043
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker have been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The executive directors review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on these reports. The executive directors consider
the business from a product perspective. Specially, the Group’s
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a. Sales of controller systems for consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and income from sales of small
electrical appliances — wholesalers.

b.  Sales of controller systems for mobile phones and income
from sales and assembly of mobile phones — wholesalers.
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of small
electrical appliances

HEBE — HEHEESR

11. ER — &

&

N

7 b 2 B SR 4E

REBIZ A 2K

KEDWT

BE+=-A=+—HIEE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales and
assembly of mobile phones

HEH - HERDEF

Consolidated

REFAmIEHSERE EHBRRGRHER
REBENHBEHBA HBRBEFEBRA &#e
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-—F —T——4F ZEB--fF —ZT——4F B —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARBTT ARBTRE AR¥ETT AR¥TR ARBTT
Revenue &5
— External sales — Yo 4,037 2,685 5,143 6,004 9,180 8,689
Segment results DEbELE (6,673) (13,010) (8,565) (20,468) (15,238) (33,478)
Bank interest income RITALBUA 3 3
Unallocated revenue AU 2,775 8,021
Unallocated expenses KOEAX (680) (351)
Finance costs YA KA (1,365) (1,802)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEKZE
plant and equipment and MIEAHEEE
prepaid lease payment 8) (3,430)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &t E A 72 Wz 6,377 812
Reversal for claims, net BERE  F8E 770 634
(7,366) (29,591)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued
Segment revenues and results — Continued

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment
results represent losses incurred by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs including bank interest
income, finance costs, loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payment, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and reversal for claims, net. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable segment:

At 31 December

11.

Wholesalers - sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of
small electrical appliances

REE - HEHEESR

i“‘%9%%@%&“@3%‘3%4%222&%
SEBERAR - o MBEBESORESE
ZEE'ETE CWAREFRABERRITHER (21
IRITHBIA - BEXA - BEME - K
EREEREMNEEREZBE) - HEH
%’ATZH&Z@&%&@%E@% T E
DREEREFEMAEESERKEE
ﬂiﬁ%ﬁi

USRI TR TS o

DH'

HEEREE

&5

JINAEBEER

\Uﬂ};
ﬂ—|

S RIEF 2N EH2
BT

R+=HA=+—H

Wholesalers - sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of
mobile phones

}ﬂ?%ﬁﬁ - ﬁ%/mg%%

Consolidated

REFHRNEHERSE BHBEAGRHEER

RBENHEBENRA HBARBEBFENBA i)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
SE--f —“T—% ZB-Zf ~T—F ZB--fF —“T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETT
Segment assets DHEE 11,795 5,783 6,784 14,893 18,579 20,676
Unallocated corporate assets AN EEE 10,744 11,872
Total assets BEE 29,323 32,548
Segment liabilties DEaE 64,141 108,050 82,922 281843 = 147,068 389,893
Provision for claims RERE - 4,544
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP BEEEE 427 -
Total liabilities FEA=R 147,490 394,437
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued
Segment revenues and results — Continued

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and REEHHNRR LS

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than .
property, plant and equipment, investment property and
prepaid lease payment. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned

by individual reportable segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
provision for claims. Liabilities for which reportable segments
are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December

11. ER — &
DEBUNEE N EE — &

DEEAEEIR

FBEEEGDETELEDAE Y

ERY B G ?xé%%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ

EFRRRIN - A 2D FPERE A

é?&fl%‘ﬂ ?ﬁ&“*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ’wﬂl
BTN &

MBRESED EE% REDE  ERE

A2/ EHARAENE
& E%éﬂé%tt%& THE °
Hftbn ZpEH

BET-A=1—HLFE

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
consumer electrical and
electronic appliances and
income from sales of

Wholesalers — sales of
controller systems for
mobile phones and
income from sales
and assembly of

small electrical appliances mobile phones Unallocated Consolidated
HEH - BEHERER HEE - HERDER
ETARNEHBAAR BHERGRBER
HENMHEENUA RERBERNUA L) G4
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
=®--fF  -T--f | ZR-F - R -"F-F R _2F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETT @ ARBTR ARETrT | ARETR ARETT @ ARETR ARETR
Amounts included in the measure of segment ENTERIS HEER
profit or loss or segment assets: FBEmE:
Capital expenditure (Note) ERR (M) - - - - 1,405 3,105 1,405 3,105
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERE - - - - 1,079 2,067 1,079 2,067
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment BEBNRETE - - - - 242 242 242 242
Depreciation for investment property RENERE - - - - 58 58 58 58
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories ?ME ERRERE - 3,240 - 2,374 - - - 5,614
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables  FiEME FE AN RERE - 66 - 75 - - - 141
Impairment loss recognised i respect of other receivables ﬁ%ﬁﬁ:ﬂiﬁé ARRRRERE - 2,551 - 5,704 - - - 8,255
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HE - BERRERDN
property, plant and equipment RESE - - - - 1,255 1,767 1,255 1,757
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BERENE 5 RNERN
respect of trade receivables FEEE 21) (89) (26) (131) - - 47 (190
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BEE R RR RN
respect of other receivables HEEE - ] - 9] - - - 1]
Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHRETEREERRE
operating decision maker but not included BRRaRAHERTE
in the measure of segment profit or loss: e
Bank interest income TR BHA (1) 1) @ 7] - - @) €]
Interest expense FleHx 600 516 765 1,286 - - 1,365 1,802
Note: Capital expenditure includes property, plant and equipment. Mz : BARYAEYYE  BERRE -
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BHE—

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 11.

12.

86

Turnover from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows:

DRER — &

RIBEFEE  KEHUAEEALEBEA
HBiB10% MEF 2 & EEHIMT ¢

2012 2011

—E——fF %

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETFT

Customer A’ EPA 2,393 N/A N A

Customer B! EPB 1,055 2,047

Customer C? BEC? N/ATRER? 1,465

Customer D? P D2 1,530 1,043
! Turnover from mobile phones. ! REFREEEZ SR -
2 Turnover from electronic appliances. 2 REBFRMZEEE -

3 The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the total sale of 3 HERERAEETHFE ZHERREERMTE

the Group in the respective year.

Geographical information

The Group’s business is primarily operated in the PRC. All of the
Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in the PRC.

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been
presented as they are substantially located in the PRC.

B10% °

b & & A

AEENEBLIBETELE - AEEZ

Wz BORETEINER °

BRI D APEEC AP E - St &
WEEMEIR 25| ERKREEN DT

FINANCE COSTS 12. @E R
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Interests on: LA 5008 E’J FE
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable AR —&F Wg‘%ﬂgfiz
within one year fﬁfﬂﬁg 1,365 1,346
— Other borrowing wholly repayable — BN —FABEBEEN
within one year HEmEE = 456
1,365 1,802
ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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HE—
13.

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company and the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. No PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been provided for the year ended 31
December 2012 as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in the PRC for the year (2011: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided for the year ended 31 December 2012 as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
the year (2011: Nil).

13. FTBHMAX

RIBHEARKME ([FE ) EERFHR
E(TRERETOR]) REEME fﬁxf,\ﬁm
Bo - BZEENF-A—HE AR
KB EARMNHEER25% ° EEE\AK%
B R FEAN I ARE D BEIEE A ERBUE R -
U ERBE—_FT——F+_H=1+—H
LEFERTEMRMAEHARREE(ZF
——FE)

BB NS I W fh 5T AR TR A A
16.6%+ H - AR AEERFAL REE

BEETAERTEN > MAERBE—
E-HF+ A=+ —HALFEREFETN
BUERER (T ——F - &) -

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss FREHAXAIEES 2 E WS R
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive BRI ATEEEERNT
income as follows:
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Loss before tax BRELAIE 1B (7,366) (29,591)
Tax at the domestic tax rate ZEAR KT ENTRIE (1,842) (7,398)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible Eﬁffdi‘%ﬁﬁ = MR A A
for tax purposes A 391 -
Tax effect of income not taxable E‘Mﬁiﬁ‘kﬁﬁ AR AR
for tax purposes Mg & (1,887) (357)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WERERZ RIEE B STZ 3,308 21,541
Tax effect of deductible temporary RAER AR By Z5E )
differences not recognised s = 3,940
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible AR LART R W RERR A] 0 5%
temporary differences previously TR EENTBTE
not recognised = (17,803)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HEM R A EREEHHE AR
operating in other jurisdictions MR REZRENTE 30 77
Income tax expense for the year FRABHEAX - -
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BHE—

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE
14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. FREIE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
Loss for the year has been arrived at FAHEED R
after charging:
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments ~ E TR A (BIEEEHIS)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind —ﬁ% TEREMEDER 4,388 7,264
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFET B 111 340
Total staff costs #8 TR 4,499 7,604
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 - = M EREITE 1,079 2,067
Depreciation of investment property WEYENE 58 58
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment HisTaEN M ENIE 242 242
Total depreciation and amortisation e R#EARE 1,379 2,367
Auditor’s remuneration 1ZEEN N & 447 446
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense Eﬁiﬁ%i%TfWﬁ 14,823 19,927
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME - FE MR EER
property, plant and equipment BEEE 1,225 1,757
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HFEHERRRERBE -
inventories included in cost of sales T ASHER AR = 5,614
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LB B 5 BR SR R B R B 5 18
trade receivables = 141
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FE A EUAR S IERRREEE
other receivables - 8,255
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLEI —E AR E A 7 B R
an amount due from a former KR EEE
related company 16
Research and development expenditure s LM 1,802 2,293
Net foreign exchange losses HNE B RF R = 19
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEVE BENMERER
equipment and prepaid lease payments FENHER 2 EE 8 3,430
Operating lease rentals for rented premises ~ HHEWENKLHEHR S 1,100 1,000

88
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

15. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ AND 15. BEIRA(FEREESRESHS)

SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2012 2011

—E-——fF —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARBEFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e LEREMEDER 4,306 6,725
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKEFFH B 109 340
4,415 7,065

Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong employees. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees, Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group
companies (the “employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees
makes monthly contribution to the scheme a 5% of the employee’s
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HKD1,250 per month.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Company
and those subsidiaries, which operated in the PRC, are required to
contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

BB

AEEZHEERELHBBEBRFMER
B EHEMRE R R FIE R ESETEI([58
Bastdl)) - Bt sIBR AT EHIE
KetE ABUSTATE - BE®RES
E AEERESNE 2R (EED R
HESETGAYZREBEENS% WA (FE
BogmlE A BEEMD)ERHR - BERE
ERHEFAT A 1,2508 T AR -

HE] (BRI

BRR BRI SOERHE - AR RE
TEREENZENBARARNMEREE
B SR IRAR B ET &I K o B SR IRAE F
SRR ERMERNEB XN 2RRAKE -
RIBEFRAKBENFE - AEBERESFH
FOMBAS E B BRI & S SOR KR
BRI H AR -
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HE_Z

16. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

90

B R R P it

=

—FtoASt-ALFE

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eighteen (2011:
nine) directors and six (2011: three) supervisors were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2012

Name

®E

Executive directors

Mr. Zhu Guo An (Note a)

Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (Note a)
Mr. Zhu Chun Rong (Note a)
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun (Note b)
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun (Note b)
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu (Note b)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Jiang Guo Ping (Note a)
Mr. Zheng Xin Tai (Note a)
Mr. Zhu Guo Dan (Note a)
Mr. Liu Feng (Note b)

Mr. Zheng Yi Song (Note b)
Mr. Wang Wei Shi (Note b)

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Lu Xuan (Note a)

Mr. Lu Xian Tai (Note a)

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie (Note a)

Professor Fang Min (Note b)

Mr. Pang Jun (Note b)

Mr. Law Hon Hing Henry (Note ¢)

Supervisors

Mrs. Mao Li Hong (Note a)
Mrs. Ma Ying (Note a)

Mrs. Shi Wei Na (Note a)
Mr. Wang Jiangao (Note b)
Mr. Yang Li (Note b)

Mr. Wang Yinbin (Note b)

Total

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
—E-FFR

BTES

HE% L (iEa)
TTERTA (iEa)
RERFEAE (HiEa)
B HLAE (i)
B EELAE (D)
BRIE+ 524 (B iED)

FHITES
BT EAE (MiEa)
Barse s (Hta)
AERSEAE (it a)
g2 4 (H5b)
BRI (i EED)
FEELLE (b

BYFHITES

BRELEE (MiEa)
RS (Mita)
HRIEFE L (MiEa)
71 8#E (M5Eb)
REE LA (D)
mEESLAE (i)

E=
EMA L+ (FizEa)
Byt (Msta)
S#E £ (ffita)
skt (MiEb)
k& (D)
FRIWEE (D)

at

Fees

ik
RMB’000

AR®FT

16.

ESREEME

EEREEHS
ENSER T AE(ZE——%: A E
ERAR(CE——F: ZR)EEHHL
o -

BE—ZF-——HF+-HA=1—HIFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

and benefits scheme
inkind contributions Total

E7ac =1 BHKEF
REMER HE A st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR%Tx
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

— Continued

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments — Continued

Year ended 31 December 2011

16. EXRESHE — &

ESRESME - &

BE—F-——F+ZHA=1—HIFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees inkind  contributions Total
e 2= RIREF
"2 we REMEF SHEIH BET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT ARBTE ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Xiao Chun REHFLE - 243 - 243
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun BIEERE - - - -
Mr. Chen Zheng Tu BRIEL &4 - - - -
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Liu Feng e - - - -
Mr. Zheng Yi Song BRINEE - - - -
Mr. Wang Wei Shi TEELE - 25 - 25
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Professor Fang Min ki C 65 - 50 - 50
Mr. Pang Jun BRELE - 60 - 60
Mr. Law Hon Hing Henry BEESE - 41 - 41
Supervisors Ex
Mr. Wang Jiangao IReLE - 120 - 120
Mr. Yang Li 1B E - - - -
Mr. Wang Yinbin FTIRWEE - - - -
Total #Et - 539 - 539
Notes: ks

(a) Appointed on 30 June 2012.
(b) Resigned on 30 June 2012.

(c) Resigned on 17 August 2012.

No directors and supervisors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

5

A@A

C,

ng—fi)\ﬁ thE ‘m‘ﬂf

EA i—,i/\ﬂ +EZE§E

HE-_ZT——FfrR-_Z——F+=A
AL FETEEEREERENR

TBHEEABE
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE
16. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS
— Continued

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group, none
(2011: two) was director of the Company whose emolument are
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining five (2011: three) highest paid individuals were as follows:

16. EXRESHE — &

ERMEEENS

AEBRESESHFMALH BiE(ZE
——F  WB)ARREFE - HEFMEIRN
EXHBEEHRF - HBAAR(ZFT——
FZR)RSFMALHFIWNT :

2012 2011

—E——F T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Salaries and other benefits in kind e TEREDET 683 463
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRBFET B 5K 4 -
687 463

Their emoluments were within the following band:

WEZFHMANFATHENA :

Number of employees

EEAH
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
Nil to RMB826,993 (equivalent to Tz AR® 826,993 7T
HKD1,000,000) (257 1,000,000 7T) 5 3

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the directors and
supervisors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011.

17. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 December
2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2011: Nil).

18. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the consolidated loss of approximately RMB7,322,000 (2011:
RMB29,491,000) and the weighted average number of
500,000,000 shares (2011: 500,000,000 shares) in issue during the
year.
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17. RE
KBE-Z——F+_A=+—HILFE"
WES A SRBRMES - BREHRA
RMEEZZRARE(ZE——F ) o

18. 8 RE R

HE-_T——F+_A=1+—HILEFEH®
RABHEABRGSRENEBERESF
NG EBEHARET73822000T( =%
——4F : AR¥29,491,0007T) K2 E1TN
# S 35 B% 21500,000,000 f% ( — & ——4F :
500,000,000 %) M&T& -
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

18.

19.

LOSS PER SHARE — Continued

No diluted loss per share have been presented for the two years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as there was no diluted
potential ordinary share outstanding for both years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. BREE — &

RN E

22T

—FRZZE——F+ZAH

=T —HILMEFEYEZFTAEEGE

SEME R E R
ERESREEER -

19. U3 - BERRE

P& - BRI A 2 51 5% R AE

Computer
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HENERE BERESE BAERE "E @zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETT
COST B
At 1 January 2011 RZT——F—HA—H 32 106,552 9,031 2,912 118,527
Additions NE 1,633 1,313 159 - 3,105
Disposals HE (32) (89,924) (5,912 2,912 (98,780)
Exchange realignment BN R - - (6) - 6)
At 31 December 2011 e = 1,633 17,941 3,272 - 22,846
Additions 7‘% 1,398 - 7 - 1,405
Disposals HE - - (99) - (99)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—f+-A=1+—-H 3,031 17,941 3,180 - 24,152
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION EEigiil
At 1 January 2011 RZT——F—F—H 7 68,974 7,066 2,751 78,798
Provided for the year ERRE 408 1,610 49 - 2,067
Eliminated on disposals HE 8 7 (58,445) (4,147) (2,751) (65,350)
Exchange realignment fE X AR - - (5) - ()
At 31 December 2011 —E——F+-A=1+—H 408 12,139 2,963 - 15,5610
Provided for the year EW@{ 58 997 24 - 1,079
Eliminated on disposals & R 8 - - ©1) - (91)
At 31 December 2012 R-B--—F+=-H=+—-H 466 13,136 2,896 - 16,498
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  Z:TREEE
At 1 January 2011 R=_E——F—HA—H - 28,095 1,675 - 29,770
Provided for the year FREE - 1,642 115 - 1,757
Eliminated on disposals HER - (28,095) (1,675) - (29,770)
At 31 December 2011 “E——$+t-A=+—H - 1,642 115 - 1,757
Provided for the year Emﬁ’éﬁ 1,225 - - - 1,225
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—-F+=-A=+—-H 1,225 1,642 115 - 2,982
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-=—F+=-A=+—-H 1,340 3,163 169 - 4,672
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H 1,225 4,160 194 - 5,579
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —
Continued

Notes:

(a) The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives less their residual values at the
following rates per annum:

Medium-term leasehold Over the shorter of the term of the lease
buildings in the PRC or 3.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease
or 20%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Computer and office 20%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors conducted a review

of the Group’s leasehold improvements, plant and machinery and computer
and office equipment. An impairment loss of approximately RMB1,225,000
was recognised during the year due to relocation of factory premises (2011:
RMB1,757,000).
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19. 1% - BERRE — &

Wit

FitE - B RERERE G A R A
RREEBEL A BRERTIIFRFE :

FAFR B 1% 85k 3.33%

P EEF (AR EALE)
HEMELEE % HI5 20%

(ABEEBAE)

R Rikeg 10%-20%
BMRBAERME 20%
a8 20%
HE-Z——F+-A=+—HILFE =54

REE B’ﬁﬁiﬂ%%%ﬂk B s A B R
MAEREETRE - FAEREREERRE
BEHARK1,225000T(ZF——F: AR
#1,757,0007T) °
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 20. BREYHE
RMB’000
ARETT
COST Jo %N
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 Rn—Z——F—H—H"
and 31 December 2012 —E——F+ZA=+—8xK
—E—-—_—_F+=-—B=+—H 1,326

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT Z:tifEREE

At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——%—H—H 58

Provided for the year FAEE 58

At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R-EBE—F+-_A=+—H8BxK

—E——F—F—H 116

Provided for the year FNEE 58

At 31 December 2012 R=-ZB-—=-%+=-HF=+—H 174

CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31 December 2012 R=B-—=-%+=-HF=+—H 1,152

At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+HA=+—H 1,210

Notes: M EE -

(@) The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the (@ PR EME TR BESERERKIETF 4% A
period of the shorter of the term of the lease or at 4% per annum. B HMERE)ITE -

(b) The above investment property is situated in the PRC under medium term (b) B EARBEPBRABAOMARRE - LABRER
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose and are measured AEHAEEAFE  WARAERXGE -
using the cost model.

@] The investment property represent the building situated in the PRC. Since the (© REWMERUNPENETF - ARATELRZ T
comparable market transactions are infrequent and the alternative reliable BRHWT% - BIEEAM AT ER A SEMHE -
estimates of fair value are not available, the Directors consider that the fair MEERA  REVENATELRIZFHEEH
value of the investment property is not reliably determinable on a continuing AJRETE ©
basis.

(d) The Group’s investment property has been pledged for bank borrowings as at (d) R FR-_T——F+-A=+—H &

31 December 2012 and 2011. Details are set out in Notes 34 and 43.

SEREMEDET - LESRITEE - FBH

FKTES4 f2 43 ©
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BE—
21. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

The Group’s prepaid lease payment represent leasehold land

BANEER

REE 2 BN RETIRRE B

located in the PRC held under medium-term leases. BHFEIEE M -
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
At 1 January w—H—H 5,083 5,325
Amortisation provided for the year F NGRS (242) (242)
At 31 December Wt+—_A=+—H 4,841 5,083
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BERMEITHIN :
Current asset MENEE 242 242
Non-current asset EMEEE 4,599 4,841
4,841 5,083
(@) Included in prepaid lease payment as at 31 December 2012 @ HARZE——E+-_A=+—HH
was a carrying amount of approximately RMB4,841,000 ENBEZNEREN A ARK
(2011: RMB5,083,000) representing the leasehold land 4841000 ( =T ——F: AR
element of investment property measured using the cost 5,083,0007T) + BILARK AR KT 2/
model. Such leasehold land was classified as prepaid lease WEYENBAE LIS o« BIELKE
payment under an operating lease and carried at cost less THE  ZHEE T ES ;Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁf
accumulated amortisation. Such prepaid lease payment was TR AR 2T R c HE
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis from ENFEF+_A=+—HILEE EZIE
the date of change in use of the corresponding buildings to }Eﬁﬁﬁ KRR BEEFHN RGN
investment properties during the year ended 31 December —  #& FAREMESTHEREGEIERN
2009. RS o
(b) The Group’s prepaid lease payment has been pledged for b) RZZE—-FE-_FT——F+=A
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012 and 2011. Details =+—B  AEEMNEMEEFRED
are set out in Notes 34 and 43. FARITIEEEEM - FFIBHRM
34 243 °
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BE—
22,

23.

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

INVENTORIES FE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Raw materials R 3,025 2,383
Finished goods B 1,395 744
4,420 3,127

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWEZIRMX
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B BRERVEEE

Impairment loss on trade receivables is recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount if remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables directly.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
were individually determined to impair. The individually impaired
receivables are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific provision for
impairment was recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

3,683 34,312
(36) (32,158)
3,647 2,154

R ER 5585 3 2 B AR AR AR A
HEA S M RS OB R B RAE BN (1
BEHESR T  REE E R 58 R
Hgs) -

RERERR - NEE 2 B EKRE 5K
R ER BB BLRE - @5 2R ERYK
BRRDEREEFP 2 EERE  WHERE
B RN AR TSR T T LA
R Hit - EEERERMERE  KAEH
W L% FERAMETE ETERm -
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued 23. EWEZRNR — &
The Directors consider that the fair values of trade receivables are EEZRE ARERESERRBREEE
not materially different from their carrying amounts because these B ZEREz2ATFERERAETE
amounts have short maturity periods on their inception. BARER-

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade
customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, net of

AEBEGTEEZEPOFHEREHRRN
He UTARMERRZEZAZIE
WEZERF(EHHREEIBNREER) D

impairment losses recognised was as follows: BREC T ¢
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEEFT
0-90 days 0ZF90H 3,595 2,099
91-180 days 912180H = -
181-365 days 1812365 H 52 55
3,647 2,154

The movements in accumulated impairment losses of trade

receivables were as follows:

FEWE 5 8RR RAHRVEB IR Z BT

2012 2011
—E-——F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AEEFTT
At 1 January w—H—H 32,158 32,269
Impairment loss recognised during the year & NEER IR B E B - 141
Reversal during the year FAEE (47) (190)
Written off during the year FAHH (32,075) -
Exchange realignment fE 5 = (62)
At 31 December ANt+t—A=+—H 36 32,158
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BHE—

—ZH+ZA=t-HALFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

As at 31 December 2012, included in the impairment loss are
individually impaired trade receivables in the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB36,000 (2011:
RMB32,158,000) which are long outstanding and have been
placed in severe financial difficulties and the management assessed
that the recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past due but
not impaired are as follows:

23.

BWE SRR — &

W_E——F+-_F=+—08 BEFESE
BREGEHEFTHARES800T(ZF
——F : AR#32,158,0007T) 2 K EAKE
EACBRBREVEREFHC @ARIRE
NAEEERESER  SEETTER
HEARE NEBMUPERZSHEHITH
EfAHE R R o

EEBERBENEWRE S ERNRED
T -

2012 2011

—E——F —F——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREETIT

Within 90 days past due BHEI0 A = -
91 to 180 days past due #HEI91 2180 H 52 55
52 55

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related ARiE B ARORE R FE U E S IR )T A 4R

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RESFWFFZEFPHR

EEMERBEM B E SRR B2 i
21»‘%%%&&?&%%&@5‘3’]3%1@5%?%
*E?J%L@EW%“ #QIE REFER/EHRNE
Eﬂﬁ)ﬁﬁi%"]z%(
Hﬁz@ Sﬁlﬁi/ﬁﬁﬁjf{rﬂﬁ@ﬁ%& o REE
WER % S ERF A TR -
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24,

BANRE - RS R EARURIRR

2012 2011
—E-—F %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Prepayments TEfIFRIE 119 250
Deposits b - 31
Other receivables H A EURBR 3K 891 69,472
1,010 69,753
Less: Accumulated impairment losses W BETREEE - (58,740)
1,010 11,013

The movements in accumulated impairment losses of other
receivables were as follows:

H A EUER KR RETRER IS T

2012 2011

—E——F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFTT

At 1 January w—H—H 58,740 51,636
Impairment loss recognised during the year £ N2 85 B 518 - 8,255
Reversal during the year FREE = (7)
Written off during the year F R (58,740) (1,144)
At 31 December RNt+t—_A=+—H - 58,740

At 31 December 2012, included in impairment losses are
individually impaired other receivables of the Group with an
aggregate balance of approximately RMB Nil (2011:
RMB58,740,000) which are long outstanding and have been
placed in severe financial difficulties and the management assessed
that the recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 25. W (EFN) BERATRIEA

COMPANIES
Maximum
amount
outstanding
At 1.1.2012 At 31.12.2012  during the year
R=Z-=f R=Z-=fF FRKREE
-B—B +t=A=+-AH NESHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
Amounts due from related companies: FEWREEATRE
IR RAERRBREE DT L RIZRFIZER
(“lZ B FEE”) (Note a) BEREMRA
(MizRFIZE]) (st a) 16 - 16

JEURIZ RFZE (R —ZF AR &
RR)MREBRBREERERARN AR
HRAWFREAATYE - Eift - FAER
HEARBE16,000T(ZZF——5F : ) o

The amount due from Uz % #] %, a former related company in
2012, has been long outstanding and the directors of the Company
consider this amount to be irrecoverable and accordingly an

impairment of RMB16,000 was recognised for the year (2011: Nil).

2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE  AR%T
Amounts due to related companies: FENRAEATFIE :
FYEZR 2 EBAREERAA FYNEZRZ EBABEERAR
("EZRZE") (Note b) (MEHR 2] (MiFEb) - 648
A imla R E TR AR R E TR
BREMERA BREFEAR(TERImE])
("FaZ ") (Note c) (MF5Ec) - 15,860
RYERF R B IR AR RYERF R B A R
(“AFRYIEZR") (Note d) (MRYZEZ= D) (MEEd) = 1,271
SBEEIEEENTE T MR SBREATRE NI EF MR
BREERAR(BEEH) BEREARR(BES])
(Note e) (FFzEe) - 15,000
- 32,779
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#=

—FT-A=T-RALFE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED
COMPANIES — Continued

Notes:

(@)

The Company holds 40% equity interest of IZ 3 F|% on behalf of Mr. Li Xiao
Kai, a former supervisor of a Company’s subsidiary. The amount due from Iz
B FZE is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Mr. Yang Li, a former shareholder of the Company, is also a director and
shareholder of % 2= Z £ . The amount due to 7% %= Z £ is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Fa% Ik is a subsidiary of a former
corporate shareholder of the Company, China Ruilian. On 23 December 2011,
China Ruilian disposed 7% I 5 to certain independent third parties. Mr. Liu
Xio Chun, the former Chairman of the Company, is also a shareholder and
director of 7% 5B
bearing and repayable on demand.

. The amount due to 7§ %& I8 is unsecured, non-interest

Mr. Gong Zheng Jun, a former director of the Company, is also a shareholder
of EYIIEZE . The Company holds 51% equity interest of F 3£ on behalf of
Mr. Tan Zhan Yuan. The amount due to % 3I[/& 25 is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Mr. Liu Xio Chun, the former Chairman of the Company, is also a director of J8
FI =37 . The amount due to SBFIm 3T is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Due to the change in shareholders of the Company in 2012, the
amounts of approximately RMB648,000, RMB1,271,000 and

RMB15,000,000 due to & &= 7 £, &

Y% & and B B = #

respectively were included in other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2012.
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RRARRRADEM B R A EE TR TR
B Uiz FRFEE 40% #) B - FE Mz SR 3 10 FOR
REER £E BAREREE-

ARAFBERGLIEETRERZEEERM
R ENERZENRER/EERR 28 AR

HE-T-TF+-_A=+—HILFE ALK
wTJZK Al — B AE A B R R B B EE 2 BB A
Ale R=ZZ——F+=-A=+=H PEEHD
ERTHHTETELE=7 - AAFAMEREE
BELENAARRBARRRES - BHAR
IR B BRI - B8 - BARENREE -

ARAFRNESETERRETRRINERHRR -
ARAFREKBERELEERERYEFRE1% MK
o BAARIERNREREER 28 BA
FEERMEE -

ARARAEFEIEFEETRBESNOES -
BRSO RIARERR 28  AARE
SKIEE o

MAAARZ BN —F— = FR R

Rt EERZE R

YEZRFOBR =

o Al # A R #648,000T A R
1,271,000 7T M2 A R # 15,000,000 7T 2078

TIet AR ZZE
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MR S BT B



Notes to the Con§olidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

for the year ended 31 December 2012

"=

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

27.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.35% to
0.50% (2011: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum.

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate:

26.

RITEBREAEE

RITHERIZFFENT035EE050E 2
M(ZZ——F : N TF001EZ05E M)
RIS FRET B ©

RITRBIRSBRE TIIF0R (VAR 2185
MBI TN ESEHE)

2012 2011

—E——F —E——%F

’000 '000

Fr Fit

HKD BT 79 2

There was approximately RMB6,525,000 are denominated in RMB
and deposited with banks in the PRC (2011: RMB2,203,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Company is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES / OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

27.

AR 6,525,000 TTIA ARBEHE « WiF
AFBENRIT(ZE——F: AR
2,203,0007T) - AR T SEBHIEKBRAEE
& - SR - AR IR R B A R HNE B IR
GO REE SERMEEERTE A2
R IE BB EITIMNE E M RITHA
REHMBEMER -

ERE SRR HA R e
ATEA

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Trade payables FEE SRR
Other payables E b pERTER IR
Accruals st E A

48,856 49,596
37,143 22,502
13,257 10,313
50,400 32,815
99,256 82,411
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HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

27. TRADE PAYABLES / OTHER PAYABLES AND 27.
ACCRUALS — Continued

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the

FEE 5 RRRH A FE AT BRI BB

AEA &

RBERRZRERZA 2T RN E SRR
%)

invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as follows: KBS DT RINT
2012 2011
—E—_—F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
0-90 days 0Z90H 783 738
91-180 days 91£2180H 160 340
181-365 days 181 £365H 273 821
Over 365 days i3 365 H 47,640 47,697
48,856 49,596
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. BEIMMTHEENAWNA -
28. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER CORPORATE 28. EE—RBAIEARRKIE
SHAREHOLDER
2012 2011
—E——fF %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
China Ruilian Holding Corporation FEEHEEEERRE AT
(“China Ruilian”) ([P B ImEs ) - 202,607

The amount was waived by China Ruilian during the year ended 31
December 2012.

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 29.

The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.
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30. AMOUNT DUE TO A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER 30. BEf—R|EXERENE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Zhejiang Wanli Group Limited MIBEELEEBRAA
("Wanli Group™) (82&E]) 33,041 28,810

Upon completion of the share transfer agreement, Wanli Group, a
potential investor in 2011, has become a major shareholder of the

Company in 2012.

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

REOBEHETKE  S2EE(R_F
—— R RBEEREE)R T _FK
RARBIMEERR -

ZFORATYEER - B RBREREE -

31. DIVIDENDS PAYABLES 31. ERRE
The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared for FERRERRR ST MFRE-LARD
Promoter Shares in 2004 and shareholders of the Company in ERORBREERZZEZRAFRAQA
2005 which amounting to RMB940,000 and RMB3,500,000 RERERORBAKRE DRAARE
respectively. 940,000 7t &2 A R # 3,500,000 7T °
32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS 32. HERE
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 4,544 6,518
Reversal for claims FAREIZRE  F8
during the year, net (770) (634)
Settlement during the year FREE (3,774) (1,340)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8” - 4,544
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—E+-AS—AILER

32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(@)

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB1,206,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group by Zhejiang Metals And Materials Group
Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Metals”).

Zhejiang Metals applied to China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission Shanghai Commission (4
BEEESZEE F)§5 ) for arbitration on 22 October
2008 for default payment for goods. Zhejiang Metals
requesting Shenzhen Tianchuang Communication Company
Limited (&3l X &l {=H R A R]) (“Shenzhen Tianchuang’) to
pay the payment for goods of RMB4,672,000 and the interest
of RMB553,000. The Company was required to be listed as
the second respondent and to assume the joint liability. On
22 October 2008, the arbitration commission issued the
arbitral award which judged that Shenzhen Tianchuang shall
pay the payment for goods of RMB4,672,000 and the interest
of RMB541,000 and the Company as the second respondent
shall assume the joint liability. The Company made an appeal
to Shanghai No. 2 Intermediate People’s Court against the
judgement.

On 18 February 2009, a judgement was made by the relevant
court on the litigation in favour of Zhejiang Metals. The
Company entered into an agreement with Shenzhen
Tianchuang agreed that the aggregate principal and interests
in the amount of approximately RMB2,606,000 would be
paid by the Company by monthly repayment of RMB100,000,
among which RMB800,000 and RMB600,000 has been
settled by the Company during the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2010 respectively. The Company further recognised
RMB770,000 in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2012 and paid RMB2,000,000 as full settlement of the claim
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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(@)

R-ZBE—F+_A=+—H0 &E
BEEENIVESBESEBRAR
(DI eB ) ITEAEBMAREDHA
R #1,206,0007T °

MIEBRERERMNZEENF
TAZ+ZARTEBEEEEE HE
BE LB EHFBMNH - NIeEE
SoRYIRalBEBR A (RYIXR
Bl TR EFRARKE4,672,0007T &
B AR 5530007 © AR FHE
RN AE s AEEEEE -
HEEgR _EEN\F+A=-+=H
TEMZEHTE  ZHEEET  F
IR EIZEZ [ ERA R 4,672,000
TTRFEAREES41,0007T © 5 =4
ERRREREESET - AR A
HZERERLSTE_PRARER
R EEF -

R_ZTNF_A+NB  GEER
FZFRHANT & BB - A D FE
FINRBIFT S W%k - EHREARA
I AEE AR 100,0007T8 75
ANEERSRFBHFAHARE
2,606,0007T - EFAAFTREZEZ
TENFRZT—FTFTZA=1—
HEFERNEDAZFARYE
800,000 7T & A R #600,0007T © &
E-ZE——FE+-A=+—RIFF
E ARRE—TREEEERER
FER AR 770,0007T © UEEE
TE-—HE+-A=+—HIEEX
N AR 2,000,000 T ABEBER
BFRIA -
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32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(b)

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB932,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group by Shenzhen Haishi Communication Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Haishi”).

Shenzhen Haishi took a legal action with the People’s Court
of Shibei District in Qingdao City against the Company for
compensation for loss on inventory, transportation and
maintenance and loss of goodwill for an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB1,990,000. A judgement was made by
the People’s Court of Shibei District in Qingdao City on 3 April
2008 required the Company to compensate an aggregate
amount of approximately RMB1,012,000 to Shenzhen Haishi
for the said losses. The Company made an appeal to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Qingdao City on 28 April
2008. On 20 October 2008, a judgement was made by the
relevant court on the litigation in favour of Shenzhen Haishi.
Accordingly, an amount of RMB1,012,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2008 and included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as liabilities
at 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010. The Group settled
RMB432,000 and RMB80,000 during the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 respectively and the remaining
balance of approximately RMB500,000 had been taken up by
the former major shareholder, China Ruilian during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

RERE - &
) MZE—F+=ZA=+—H RE

BREEBERSEREFGREEAR
(RIS St HARBHRELNA
[R# 932,000 7T °

FINgtERESmmitE ARZERR
FARNG  BREEET - B L
BERAAREEBIALFTHARE
1,990,0007T - E&mmibE ARE
PR T )\FNA = BEHHR

TRAQBIANRYG TR E gk
HE#H AR 1,012,0007¢ ° &AA A
R-ZENEMA -+ N\ARASET
FRRARERIREE E5F c RZZTZN
F+AZ+H  BEERBZFAH
/ﬂ(ﬂ”/ﬁiﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ .JHZ EI%(AEM
1,012,000 2 REEEHEZE-ZZ
NF+_A=Z+—BHLFENGAE
R NFER - Wt ARZZZEN

FETNFER-_T-TF+-A
=T -HANERAMBRIERRNE
B-HEZTE——FR-_ZT——F
TZA=+—HLFE  AEEEH
B & A R #432,0007T B A R
80,0007T + #4%8 49 A ¥ 500,000 7T
EREE-_Z——F+-A=1+—8
I FERAEER R P RIRHEE -
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32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

()

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB533,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group by a contractor.

The Group was sued by a contractor for default payment of
approximately RMB781,000 during the year ended 31
December 2009 in relation to construction work carried out
by the contractor. On 6 September 2009, both parties
reached a mediation agreement in the court pursuant to
which the contractor agreed to accept RMB881,000 as full
and final settlement of the claims of which approximately
RMB100,000 has been paid by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2009. Accordingly, an amount of
RMB180,000 have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2009 as provision for claims and an amount of
approximately RMB601,000 previously recognised as other
payables has been reclassified to provision for claims during
the year ended 31 December 2009. During the year ended
31 December 2010, the Group was made a settlement
approximately RMB248,000 and the remaining balance of the
claim of approximately RMB533,000 included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as liabilities at 31
December 2011, has been taken by the former major
shareholder, China Ruilian during the year ended 31
December 2012.
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32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

(d)

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB600,000 in respect of a
number of claims against the Group by the Group’s suppliers
in respect of default payments for goods.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, an amount of
approximately RMB2,594,000 and RMB142,000 previously
recognised in accounts payables and other payables
respectively have been transferred to provision for claims.
Agreements have been reached between the Group and
these suppliers for the settlement of the claims, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to settle an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB2,736,000, of which approximately
RMB1,897,000 had been settled by the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2009, the remaining balance of
claims amounted to approximately RMB132,000 has been
waived by the suppliers and recognised as other income as
reversal of provision for claims in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2009. During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
was made a settlement of claims approximately RMB107,000
and the remaining balance is approximately RMB600,000 has
been included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as liabilities at 31 December 2010 and 2011. There
was no further claim by the suppliers or settlement had been
made by the Company during the past two years. Based on
the Company’s legal advisor, the provision of approximately
RMB600,000 was reversed during the year ended 31
December 2012.

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB742,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group on 16 November 2007 by a third party for
default payment for purchase of office equipments together
with interest on outstanding amount due.

On 17 March 2008, a judgement has been made by the
People’s Court of Zhejiang Province, which required the
Group to settle the outstanding balances within 3 months.
Accordingly, an amount of RMB742,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2008 as provision
for claims. No settlement has been made by the Group
during the five years ended 31 December 2008 to 2012. The
provision for claims of RMB742,000 was taken up by the
former major shareholder, China Ruilian during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

RERE — &
@ WN=FT-——FF+ZA=t—0 FHA

RERBEN LS AR 600,000
T KRN ERASEHRERRE
REFAREEBRINZARE -

He2—_ZT)\F+-A=+—HILF
& SR BIER AR R E AL
JES FRIE B # A R 82,504,000 7T &
AR#142,000 TE E AR E B -
AEBEHEZEHEERRELE
W B AR ERE A HEFHA
R#2,736,0007C © ERAREERE
E-ETNF+-_A=+—HILFE
BEBHARKE1,807,0007T 0 %~
mﬁfﬁ K4 A R 132,000 7T 2
HEFHE  TRBEE_TTNF
T+ A=+ —HIEFEMNGREEER
BRPERABBOZRERENHAMI
A-BHE_ZT-ZTF+_A=1+—H
HEE AEBEENHOARE
107,000t RE  BREHAREK
600,000 TE AR E—TF R _F
——E+ - A=+ HWNEAFHIR
MENZIEEE - BEMF - ZEH
[EEIEBRHRERANQT MRS
B BARRNARBEREM - 9
AR 600,000 THEEREZE —
——HE+-A=+—BItFEEE -

N_E——F+_A=+—H i A
RIEBBHRIEL B AR 742,000

T BN ERE=Z AR T L
¢+ AT NBRRARERERE
Hﬂﬁm%mﬁ KA AEERER

\%%

HTIEARZERR=_ZZNEFE=A
TEBERHR - BERAERR=E

AREBREZSHK - Bitt - BEA
REET42,000 L2 RBEEEEHEZ
ENFE+_AZ+—BHIFENEGRE
2HARERAERBRERE - NE
E-TENFE-_ZT——F+=A
Zt—HALRAFEAR  AEEEX
EEBRR - MNEBE-_ZT——F+—-A
=+—HIEFE AR®742,0007C
R R E B B Al = B R B IR

B o
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32. PROVISION FOR CLAIMS — Continued

)

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB208,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group on 5 September 2011 by a customer for
the guarantee deposits paid together with interest on
outstanding amount due.

On 23 November 2011, a judgement has been made by the
Court, pursuant to which the Group is required to refund the
guarantee deposits together with interest accrued since 22
April 2011. Accordingly, an amount of RMB208,000 had
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2011 as provision for claims. The case was closed in 2012,
and based on the legal advisor of the Company, the provision
of RMB208,000 was reversed during the year ended 31
December 2012.

At 31 December 2011, provision for claims included an
amount of approximately RMB323,000 in respect of a claim
against the Group by a customer for the trade deposit paid
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

On 21 May 2010, there was a agreement entered between
the Company and a customer regarding the Company will
provide 1,800 pieces of mobile phone to the customer.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the customer has
paid RMB540,000 as trade deposit and the Company has
delivered 700 pieces of mobile phone to the customer. During
the year ended 31 December 2011, the customer sued the
Company for the refund of the trade deposit paid together
with interest on outstanding amount due. However, in the
opinion of the directors and the legal advisor of the Company,
the claim of refund of the trade deposit of RMB540,000
should deduct the sales of the 700 pieces of mobile phone
amounting to RMB217,000 which had been delivered to the
customer. Accordingly, an amount of RMB323,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2011 as provision
for claims. The case was closed in 2012, and based on the
legal advisor of the Company, the provision of RMB323,000
was reversed during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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BE—
33.

34.

——F+-—A=+—HIEFE
OTHER BORROWINGS 33. Hfufig&
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Wanli Group SEEE 9,500 14,750
The borrowing from Wanli Group, a new major shareholder of the REBEEE(RZZE——FKALQH
Company in 2012, represents a short-term loan bearing no interest ERF)NEBERARAREER(ZE——
(2011: 2.45% per annum). The borrowing is unsecured and FFRR245[8) - ZEEYERKE LA
repayable within one year. R—FRERE -
BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITEERE
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Secured bank borrowings BIRIRIRITIEE - 20,000

At 31 December 2011, the bank borrowings represented a bank
revolving loan bear interest at 7.87% per annum and repayable
within one year. The bank borrowings with aggregate principal
amount of RMB20,000,000 were secured by the Group’s
investment property and prepaid lease payment with carrying
amounts approximately of RMB1,210,000 and RMB5,083,000
respectively. The bank loan was settled during the year ended 31
December 2012, but the assets pledged have still not yet been
released up to the date of this report.
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RZE——FF+ZA=+—8 " RITEE
TIEROTBERER  REMNEKTS7TENE
MER—FREE - FeBEARARK
20,000,000 W RITIEE B A AN E B M %
BEYEREMNBEFEMEF - I &IE
KIEREESD R4 A AR 1,210,000 7T & A
R#5,083,0007C * RITEREREEZT
——E+-A=+-RAILEEBFE  AM
HEARE DBEHREEDRERR

111
HERESFERRNDBRAAF



Notes to the Congolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2012

#=

—FT-A=T-RALFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Number of
shares Amount
BRAEHE ot |
’000 RMB’000
T ARBFIT
Authorised, issued and fully paid: EE C BETRER -
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 HN-—=ZT——%5—H—8 -
and 31 December 2012 —E2——+=ZA=+—H

E—®2——-%+=-HA=+—H 500,000 50,000
Domestic share (Note a) NE R (FfsEa) 370,000 37,000
H shares (Note b) H A% (fd5EDb) 130,000 13,000
500,000 50,000

Notes: PH%E -
(@) Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003 issued by the China Securities (@ RETEESFEEERER@N T =4

Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company, which were issued and
fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each,
were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each.

On 14 November 2003, the Company commenced the trading of the newly
issued 130,000,000 H shares of RMB0.10 each on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, including 117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by way of
placement and 13,000,000 H shares for subscription by members of the public
in Hong Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO0.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share capital and
capital reserve of the Company increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,550,000) respectively.
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RZZT=F+—A+MAE  AARIFRRER
FTEI 3 1R B 257317 #9 130,000,000 B F A R
¥E0.10 T H AR - BIEERE H B S FHEER
& # # 117,000,000 RHA% - A RIBEAFEE
REEBOSOETHEAERARALRED
13,000,000 fi% H % (18 & 7 49 A R # 69,550,000
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S
36.

37.

38.

T+ -_A=+—HItFE

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB131,591,000 (2011:
RMB142,259,000) available to offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, the unused tax losses incurred by the
Company and PRC subsidiaries can be carried forward for a period
of five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB39,529,000 (2011:
RMB39,529,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a customer of the
Group filed a claim against the Group for the refund of the sales
payment made by the customer and the related compensation
approximately RMB2,900,000 and RMB5,870,000, respectively,
due to the products inferiority.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group would have strong
grounds to defend and therefore, no provision is required to be
made in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 and 2012. Based on the legal advice, the case
could be closed without paying any compensation to the customer.

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Rental income earned during the year was approximately
RMB253,000 (2011: RMB250,000). The investment property is
expected to generate rental yields of 4% (2011: 4%) on an ongoing
basis. The investment properties held have not committed tenants
for the next year (2011: two years).

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

36.

37.

38.

IERER IR

RBERR - NEEBARBAREBELY
AR#131,501,0000(ZF——F : AR
#142,250,0007T )+ A A3 74 3K 88 R 2R &
F o BB IR PRE FI SRR B9 S B FERI 1 - AR
P EERTEERIBEEE - IRIEFE
BREEREER  ARRRFEEE QA
EXNABATEBEERFHRGEE -
H A i TH B 1B ] MR HA A S o

RIEERR  FEBEBUMAERRIEE
B AR# 39,529,000 L (ZF——F : A
R 39,529,0007T) © W AR ZE AT RS
NEERRAECHEEE  BAVEER
Bad - JRARNEHETRERER -

HREE

WEE-Z—F+-HA=+—HILFE
AEBEZ —BEFPAXGAREEIREHER
B BRREZLVEPIMNZHEHERIER
BEEABED R ALY AR 2,900,000 7T & A
R 5,870,000 7T °

EERBAEEERDBEBRETLH B
I BEZE——FkZZT—=-F+=A
=t RIS EEATGEMBMEFIE
MEE - RBEEER  ZERMIEFR
ZEBPINAMEESEESR -

RERLD
REBESHBEA

FRMBESWALBARE 253,000 (=
T——F: AR#250,0007T) » HELE
BEMERCWHRIERA4% (=T ——
Fa%)  BHEREMENHEL RERBE
T—F(ZZT——F : M) BEMS -
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38. OPERATING LEASES — Continued

The Group as lessor — Continued

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contacted with

38. EEHW — &
REEERHBEA — &

RBERR - AEERA T EKRHKIERE

tenants for the following minimum lease receivables: SEMBPAETA

2012 2011
—E——F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Within one year —F R 42 250
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZEFRIF(BREEEMRS) - 42
42 292

The Group as lessee AEEERBEEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in respect of
office premises during the year amounting to approximately
RMB1,100,000 (2011: RMB1,000,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of
five years and rentals are fixed. None of the leases included
contingent rentals and terms of renewal were established in the
leases.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

FRARBEHAEMECLEHENENNRE
e BARE1100,0007T(ZE——4F :
AR#1,000,0007T) °

REHOBEESEAREREETHAE
XEMOES - BONBEEAR/ESF
MEEE - WESIABEPNBEORED
FHRT AL S -

RBEHR  AEERBEVIAT BHEIH
WA REAEHAOR BREERESIEL

leases which fall due as follows: AP
2012 2011
—E-—F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Within one year —FR 350 1,317
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EFRIF(BREEEMRS) - 1,565
350 2,882
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

40.

(@)

The balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements.

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
Directors, details of their emoluments are disclosed in Note
16. The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regards to the performance
of individuals and market.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Director, Mr.
Liu Xiao Chun agreed to waive the amount due to him of
approximately RMB416,000. During the year ended 31
December 2011, two of the Directors, Mr. Liu Xiao Chun and
Mr. Gong Zheng Jun agreed to waive of the amounts due to
them of approximately RMB133,000 and RMB4,000,000
respectively.

Upon the change in shareholding in the Company, the
amount of approximately RMB256,623,000 (2011: Nil) due to
a former major shareholder, China Ruilian, was waived during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

39. BEALXRS

(@)

IR HIRBLREE A LR AERRIRER
RAMBHRRNOEME D -

AEBIEFBEESE -
= AW EE16 - &= EF
Mm%%%%@xMA%ﬁ&m%#

HE-_Z——F+-A=+—HLHF
B EEBEELLEREREEMNE
HFIE L AR 416,000 7T » REE
—E——F+-A=+—HILFE"
Eﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁf‘ai&amiﬁiﬂ
ERREMNEENRED IHARE
1%omm&AEM4mmmmco

RARRIBIEREN L - BRI ERK
R AP B E B 49 A R ¥ 256,623,000 7T

o

(ZF—F: B)NFBEREBE"
E “HET A=t HIEFEER

40. ARATWMBARRKEFR

2012 2011
—E—--F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEF T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R 4,672 5,579
Investment properties B YE 1,152 1,210
Prepaid lease payments JENFE A 4,598 4,841
Interests in subsidiaries (Note a) N INEEYNG] E’ﬁ% & (MfzEa) 7,313 -
17,735 11,630
Current assets REEE

Inventories 8 4,419 3,127
Trade receivables FEWE 5 Rk 3,647 2,154

Prepayments, deposits and TERFRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables Ho A IR 3K 882 10,861
Paid in advances ESEENE R 2,975 2,027
Prepaid lease payments TEfSHEERIEA 242 242
Amount due from a related company JiE U — S EQL AIFIA = 16
Bank balances and cash RITHESBREIR 176 128
12,341 18,555
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY — Continued

40. AARMNMBRRREN — &

2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade payables JERTE SERR 47,851 48,482
Other payables and accruals HAith e BRFA X IERT B A 47,822 29,461
Receipt in advances FEURFRIE 745 1,856
Amount due to a former corporate JES — R RE AR FUE
shareholder - 187,496
Amounts due to directors JENEERIA = 416
Amounts due to related companies JERAER /TAIE - 29,279
Amount due to a major shareholder JE—REEZREFIE 33,041 26,810
Dividends payables JEATR% B 4,440 4,440
Provision for claims RIEE A - 4,544
Other borrowing HmEE 9,500 14,750
143,399 347,534
Net current liabilities REBEETFE (131,058) (328,979
Net liabilities FAE (113,323) (317,349)
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital fi& A 50,000 50,000
Reserves (Note b) s (M3Eb) (163,323) (367,349)
Capital deficiency BB L (113,323) (317,349)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. ARATMMBRRRER — &
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY — Continued

Note (a) H15E (@)
Interests in subsidiaries KB A TS
2012 2011
—_E2—= —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBTT AREFT
Unlisted investment, at cost FEETRE - R 15,211 8,850
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wz B B8 A RIFRIB 57,509 32,757
72,720 41,607
Less: Provision for impairment W RE R (65,407) (41,607)
7,313 -
Note (b) Fi 3 (b)
Reserves f#iE
Statutory
Capital Other surplus  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EAGRE HitftE AERHLAES Sy | st
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)
(B&ED) (Pi&Ei) (Pi&Eiii)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2011 RZZ——F—A—H 40,449 - 23,701 (429,696) (365,546)
Loss for the year, representing FAFE  BFERNZE
total comprehensive expense %
for the year - - - (1,803) (1,803)
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+=ZA=+—8 40,449 - 23,701 (431,499) (367,349)
Loss for the year, representing FRFE - ERZE
total comprehensive expense MXaE
for the year - - - (37,484) (37,484)
Waiver of the amount due to a former RADRRIEZ BN RN IER
major shareholder upon change —ZREERRFIE
in shareholding in the Company - 241,510 - - 241,510
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZ——&+-fF=+—H 40,449 241,510 23,701 (468,983) (163,323)
Notes: MEE -
@i Capital reserve (M) BEARRE
Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of H BERFEBRERARDEITHREENRMDEE(E
shares after deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the Company. R ABBARRAD BE TR AR) ©
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40.

41.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY — Continued

40. AARMNMBRRREN — &

(i)  Other reserve (i) HfbfEE
Other reserve represents the waiver of the amounts due to a former major HEEEREN AR RREE BB REEN — BT
shareholder upon change in shareholding in the Company. FERFHIE
(i) Statutory surplus reserve (i) ZEERHBLES
The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries established in AN REAEREARLME(FE]) KD
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of 10% of B ARK AR ERMARTE - FFEHREF
their profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting standards B & 5t AR 5 B9 Bk FTIS A48 % 71 A 109%
each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the NEERBATES  EEEERBAESEHRE
registered share capital. According to the provision of the Company’s Articles BIFMBRAB50% A1 - RIEBARARNARE
of Association, under normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall RARMEE  E—REAT  EEBBRAERE
only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and A AEREEE  BRRARBERAQ RN EE
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the capitalisation of LB - A ERBARBEBERANS &
statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the remaining amount of such ERBRES M BRIE TG D REMARARE) 25% ©
reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share capital.
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES g NS
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal value of
registration and paid up issued/ Attributable equity
Class of operation/ registered/ interest held
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment  ordinary capital by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BHRERT/
dfkeEE/ EiEf/
WEAREM FrislRBEE Ryt EERAEE KAAEMGRE  TEER
Directly Indirectly
B 5E:3
Ningbo Yitai Electronic Contributed ~ PRC RMB15,000,000 51% - Research and development
Company Limited capital and production of controller
(“Ningbo Yitai") systems for display devices
EREZZETARD B4k HE A% 15,000,00070 51% - BRRBESSARTRERE
([ZRz%]) REE
Ningbo Yidong Digital Contributed ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 99% - Research and development of
Technology Co. Ltd. capital (paid up external equipments of
("Yidong Digital") (Note) RMB1,500,000) electronic calculators,
electronic components
integrated circuits,
household electrical appliances,
telecommunication and
terminal equipments
EREREBHBARRRT  EERE 4 AR¥5,0000007T (B2 99% - EFAESNIRE BFAM
(Mg REE ) () AR%1,500,0007T) ERER ZAES BIBE
eSS
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — Continued 4. MBARFE — &
Place of
incorporation/  Nominal value of
registration and paid up issued/ Attributable equity
Class of operation/ registered/ interest held
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment  ordinary capital by the Company Principal activities

MR BARERT/
AfMREE,/ BiEf/

WEARER FisRHER Ry ERRAEE KAAEGERE  TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
HiE 5k
Hong Kong Wan Li Ordinary Hong Kong HKD10,000 100% - Dormant
Enterprise Company (paid up HKD1,000)
Limited
BEERCFARRA LB i 10,0007%7T 100% S s
(B2 1,000%E7)
Yuyao City WanHao Contributed ~ PRC RMB3,180,000 100% - Not yet commenced business
Technology Industrial capital
Company Limited
RUTESZHREZERLA BHREA P& AR#3,180,0007C 100% - HAREE
Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu Lian PRC RMB3,180,000 100% - Not yet commenced business
Technology Limited
AMTESNHREERRE BEERE  HE AR%3,180,000 7T 100% - HAREE
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, Yidong Digital without submission M RHEZZ——F+ZA=+—HILFE IR
of annual register and had been invalidated by Administration for Industry and YHERXFEECAEHIBTREERNR =
Commence on 18 November 2011. The Directors are of their opinion, with the T——F+—A+/\BRH - E=RAERIEERE
advice from a legal advisor, that no litigation liability should be borne by the BRI - PIHEAR TR RS AR
Company after the invalidation. AR °
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at RERKFREMRMEHE - HEMBATE
the end of the year or at any time during the year. FRIHAREENERES -

NINGBO WANHAO HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED 119
BRERERBNBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e B s R M aE
for the year ended 31 December 2012
HET——F+-A=+—HILFEE

42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

42. HEHBAT

On 4 October 2012, the Group disposed entire equity interest of R-Z——F+AWA  AEEHERI
A-Tech Technology (H.K) Limited (“A-Tech”) at a consideration of BER(EB)ARARTEREBRE DM E
RMB2. The net liabilities of A-Tech at the date of disposal were as s PRREARE2T - REEH
follows: B IzRIRIReFEENT

2012
—E-—fF
RMB’000
ARETT
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEZFEE:
Other payables and accruals EA T ER R R IERT B A (842)
(842)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve B HNEE B 5L (R (5,535)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary S BB A M E (6,377)
Total consideration BRE =
Satisfied by: TRAR
Cash Re -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: REHEHFRERA
Cash consideration RERE =
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42. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY — Continued

On 21 January 2011, the Group disposed entire equity interest of
4% 4 5 at a consideration of RMB2,100,000. The net assets of

42. HEMBAR — &

i}

RZT——F—A=Z+—B A5EHEE

RAELZZHOEEER  TRREARE

fa%Z &7 at the date of disposal were as follows: 2,100,0007T - RHEBHH - AL HNF
BEMT :
2011
—E——F
RMB’000
AREFT
Net assets disposed of: EHEZFEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - WENEE 370
Inventories =g 173
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 122
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables AR -« me R EMERERR 387
Paid in advances B RIA 126
Bank balances and cash WITHHBREIE 110
1,288
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR 812
Total consideration BRE 2,100
Satisfied by: YHRAR :
Cash ke 2,100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: REDERFRSMA
Cash consideration RENRE 2,100
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHEMNIRITERIRS (110)
1,990
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2012
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43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group as

43. EEEM

RBERR AREETEEDWER
ERAKERRZBITEE ZRE - SR

follows: mr
2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Investment properties B YE 1,152 1,210
Prepaid lease payments A ERIE 4,841 5,083

44. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 4. FEFBEERSH

During the year, the Group received an amount of approximately
RMB256,623,000 as deemed capital contribution following the

256,623,000 7T &I 5K

FRAE lHﬁZ@J-%%’JJ\E‘ﬁ%
R RN —

waiver of an amount due to a former major shareholder. BATEERERR IE{%E’]/Iéf
45. COMMITMENT 45, EiE
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
Commitments for the acquisition of WEEME - BE R
property, plant and equipment L BEIRESE
— contracted for but not provided — BETRVBRREE 838 -

122 ANNUAL REPORT 2012
ZE-CFFR




Summary of Financial Information
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for the year ended 31 December 2012
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RESULTS ¥
For the year ended 31 December
HZ+-A=1+—-HILEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E2--f —_T——F T-TF TTNF ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Revenue g 9,180 8,689 14,422 25,618 94,522
Cost of sales SHERMAR (14,823) (19,927) (17,299) (66,786) (98,951)
Gross (loss) profit (EB)EF (5,643) (11,238) (2,877) (41,168) (4,429
Other income HA 2,778 8,043 10,175 10,309 58,092
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (584) (937) (1,381) (682) (1,024)
Administrative expenses 1THEHR (9,691) (21,673) (38,889) (34,257) (150,068)
Finance costs BE R AR (1,365) (1,802) (9,091) (10,076) (30,957)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME « BE K&
plant and equipment and prepaid RENHEERIE L EE
lease payments 8) (3,430) (78,064) - -
Gain on change of status from MEABE AR HEE
subsidiaries to available-for-sale BB 7 HinEs
investments pdl e - - - - 6,729
Gain on disposal of associates HEHZ A aME - - - - 1,080
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A R 6,377 812 703 - -
Gain (loss) on invalidation of subsidiaries P 41/ 2 7 U425 (E518) - - - 8,115 (7,408)
Reversal (provision) for claims, net RIERD (BE) - F8 770 634 (4,192) (3,800) (8,945)
Loss before tax Bri AT B 1R (7,366) (29,591)  (123,616) (71,559)  (136,930)
Income tax credit (expenses) Frigfiige (%) - - 4 430 (125)
Loss for the year FRERE (7,366) (29,591)  (123,620) (71,129)  (137,055)
Attributable to: JE(
Owners of the Company AN/NETE SN (7,322) (29,491)  (123,610) (70,525)  (135,447)
Non-controlling interests FEIE I S (44) (100) (10) (604) (1,608)
Loss for the year FREE (7,366) (29,591)  (123,620) (71,129)  (137,055)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE - BERES
At 31 December
R+=ZHA=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--fF —T——F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT AR%®TR
Total assets BEER 29,323 32,548 102,600 290,870 335,519
Total liabilities BEMHE (147,490)  (394,437)  (436,113)  (501,085)  (475,088)
(118,167)  (361,889)  (333,513)  (210,215) (139,569
Equity attributable to owners ZA/NGIE 2SN
of the Company el R (118,023)  (361,789)  (333,513)  (210,225)  (140,183)
Non-controlling interests JEIRAR MR (144) (100) - 10 614
(118,167) (361,889) (333,513) (210,215) (139,569)
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Pa\rticulﬁr\swof Investment Property
WEMRFE

Location Type Lease Term

vE E R HE

No.9 Zhenxing Road, Fupin Economic Zone, Industrial Medium-lease term
Yuyao City Chengqu, Hangzhou City, T R BA7E A

Zhejiang Province, The PRC
BT &

N

RPETH R
KELBERER

R BEEE 9 557
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